

Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

by TruBridge



Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

Copyright © 2025 by TruBridge.

All rights reserved. This publication is provided for the express benefit of, and use by TruBridge Client Facilities. This publication may be reproduced byTruBridge clients in limited numbers as needed for internal use only. Any use or distribution outside of this limitation is prohibited without prior written permission from TruBridge. The reception of this publication by any means (electronic, mechanical, photocopy, downloading, recording, or otherwise) constitutes acceptance of these terms.

Trademarks:

The TruBridge logo, as it appears in this document is a Trademark of TruBridge.

Limitations:

TruBridge does not make any warranty with respect to the accuracy of the information in this document. TruBridge reserves the right to make changes to the product described in this document at any time and without notice.

Version : 22.01

Published : May 2025

TruBridge 54 St. Emanuel Street Mobile, AL 36602 T (877) 424-1777 trubridge.com



I

Table of Contents

Chapter 1	Introduction	
	Attestation Disclaimer	1
	What's New	1
	Rooms Table - Department of Health Fields FA-13618	1 1 2
Chapter 2	Overview	
Chapter 3	Census	
	Overview	4
	Accident Places Codes	4
	Admit and Condition Codes	6
	Admit Origin Codes	8
Chapter 4	Call Referral Tables	
Chapter 5	Churches	
Chapter 6	Country Codes	
Chapter 7	County Codes	
Chapter 8	Discharge Codes	
Chapter 9	Employers	
Chapter 10	Immunization Publicity Code	
Chapter 11	Registration Screening	
Chapter 12	Emergency Room Log	
•	Arrival Modes	24
	Disposition Codes 2	:5
	Triage Levels 2	7
Chapter 13	Enterprise Wide Scheduling Tables	
	EWS Anesthesia Types 2	9
	EWS Anesthesiologist 2	9
	EWS Conflict Codes 2	9

	Table	Maintenance	- Patient	Intake
--	-------	-------------	-----------	--------

EWS Consolidation Codes	29
EWS Control Table	29
EWS Print Preferences	29

Chapter 14 Cycle Billing

II

- Chapter 15 Ethnicity Codes
- Chapter 16 Exam Types
- Chapter 17 Race Codes
- **Chapter 18 Religions**
- Chapter 19 Room Accommodation
- Chapter 20 Room Types
- Chapter 21 Rooms

Chapter 22	Service	Codes
	SNOMED	

Chapter 23 Scheduling Tables

Took Bosource	F
	ວ
Precert	
Associated Task	
Add	
Items	
Add	
Instructions	
СРТ	
Categories	
nstructions	

Chapter 24 Resources

Locations	
Personnel	

- **Chapter 25 Schedules**
- **Chapter 26 General Control**

Table of Contents	III

1

Chapter 1 Introduction

1.1 Attestation Disclaimer

Promoting Interoperability Program attestation confirms the use of a certified Electronic Health Record (EHR) to regulatory standards over a specified period of time. TruBridge's Promoting Interoperability Program certified products, recommended processes and supporting documentation are based on TruBridge's interpretation of the Promoting Interoperability Program regulations, technical specifications and vendor specifications provided by CMS, ONC and NIST. Each client is solely responsible for its attestation being a complete and accurate reflection of its EHR use during the attestation period and that any records needed to defend the attestation in an audit are maintained. With the exception of vendor documentation that may be required in support of a client's attestation, TruBridge bears no responsibility for attestation information submitted by the client.

1.2 What's New

This section introduces the new features and improvements for **Table Maintenance - Patient Intake** for release Version 22.01. A brief summary of each enhancement is given referencing its particular location if applicable. As new branches of Version 22.01 are made available, the original enhancements will be moved to the Previous Work Requests section. The enhancements related to the most current branch available will be listed under the main What's New section.

Each enhancement includes the Work Request (WR) Number and the description. If further information is needed, please contact the **Client Services** Support.

Rooms Table - Department of Health Fields -- FA-13618

DESCRIPTION: The New York Department of Health is requiring facilities to report on room availability every two hours, so that in the case of a mass emergency, the bed types and availability will be readily known. Three new fields have been added to the Rooms table to meet this requirement: Category, Classification, Designation. Each of these fields will have a look-up available to select the appropriate option.

DOCUMENTATION: See Rooms 47

Service Code Table - SNOMED Codes -- FA-14072

DESCRIPTION: A new SNOMED option has been added to the navigation panel of the Service Code table. This will allow SNOMED codes to be associated with a Service Code.

DOCUMENTATION: See Service Codes

2 Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

Scheduling Tables - Report Option -- FA-11193

DESCRIPTION: A new Report option has been added to the action bar of the Tasks/Procedures table, Locations table and Personnel table to help identify all the records within those tables. The reports will also be available from the Report Dashboard.

DOCUMENTATION: See <u>Tasks/Procedures</u> [53], <u>Locations</u> [73] and <u>Personnel</u> [84].

Chapter 2 Overview

The Patient Intake tables enable the facility to customize the tables related to various applications in the system.

Table Maintenance settings are important tools used for specific applications within TruBridge EHR. Incorrect field settings may produce undesirable results. TruBridge strongly recommends checking with the TruBridge contact at the facility or calling a TruBridge Support Representative before making any table changes if the purpose of the field is not clear.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake

-	TruBridge	Tables Patient Intake					ন	r	₩ ♠	JP 👻
2	Facility:	TruBridge Community Hospital ~								
2	Census									
8 8 8 8	 Accid Admi Admi Call Call C Legal Level 	Ient Places Codes tt and Condition Codes tt Origin Codes Referral ssment Disposition Codes Origination Codes IStatus Codes I Of Care Codes	47 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	Emergency Room Log Arrival Modes Disposition Codes Trage Levels Enterprise Wide Scheduling EWS Anesthesia Types EWS Anesthesiologist EWS Conflict Codes	₽ ₽ ₽ Res ₽ ₽ ₽	Scheduling Tables Tasks/Procedures Categories Instructions Reasons Jources Locations Personnel				
	 Locat Progr Reas Refer Refer Coun Coun Coun Coun Coun Coun Refer Regis 	tion Codes ram Codes on Codes ral Category Codes ches try Codes try Codes arage Codes unization Publicity Codes tration Screening	4 8 8 8 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	EWS Consolidation Codes EWS Control Table EWS Print Preferences Cycle Billing Ethnicity Codes Exam Types Race Codes Religions Room Accommodation Room Types Rooms Service Codes	2	Schedules General Control				
>										

Table Maintenance Menu

NOTE: Facilities outside of the United States may choose a date format of MMDDYY, DDMMYY or YYMMDD to be used on all date fields in the Patient Intake tables. Where four-digit dates display, a date format of MMDD, DDMM or MMDD, respectively, will be used. Whichever date format is selected will be reflected in all date fields and column displays throughout the tables. A TruBridge Representative should be contacted in order for the date format to be changed.

NOTE: Facilities outside of the United States may utilize a different address format within select Patient Intake Tables. The address may display the Province and Postal Code instead of the State and Zip Code when the Country Code field is set to another country code other than "US". A TruBridge Representative should be contacted for the foreign address fields to display.

Chapter 3 Census

3.1 Overview

4

This chapter describes the Patient Intake tables that are maintained via Table Maintenance.

3.2 Accident Places Codes

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Accident Places Codes</u>

Bridge Accident Pla	List		Accident Places List $ imes$	ନ ଦ		. 🌠	₩ ♦	JP 👻
💠 🙁 O New 📝 Ed	it 🥭 Refresh							
cility 1 : TruBridge Con earch:	mmunity Hospital Description							
Accident Place 🔶	Description							\$
4	ACCIDENT/EMPLOYMENT RELATED							
3	ACCIDENT/TORT LIABILITY							
1	AUTO ACCIDENT							
2	NO FAULT INS - AUTO ACC/OTHER							
11	ONSET OF SYMPTOMS/ILLNESS							
5	OTHER ACCIDENT							
46	TREATMENT STARTED FOR CARDIAC REHAB							
44	TREATMENT STARTED FOR OT							
51	TREATMENT STARTED FOR PSYCH							
35	TREATMENT STARTED FOR PT							
45	TREATMENT STARTED FOR ST							
	Bitdge Xiew Accident PI • New 2 •	Bitter New Places List New Edit Refresh archier Description ~ Accident Place Nor Accident Place Place OnSET OF SYMPTOMS/ILLNESS So OTHER Accident Started FOR OT Si TREATMENT STARTED FOR PSYCH <t< th=""><th>New Refresh cilley 1: TruBridge Community Hospital arch: Description ~ Accident Place Description ~ Accident Viace Accident Relater Relater Accident Relater Accident Relater</th><th>New Codem Places List Accident Places List Accident Places List New Refresh cility 1: TruBridge Community Hospital arch: Description ~ Accident Place Pescription ~ Accident Place Accident Places List × Accident Place Pescription ~ Accident Place Accident Places List × Accident Place Pescription ~ Accident Place Accident Places List × Accident Place <td< th=""><th>New Code Malteenance Accident Places List × Accident Places List × Image: Comparison of the Compariso</th><th>Brid Accident Place List Table Maintenance Accident Place List × N R <</th><th>Bridgy New Coldent Places List Accident Places List <</th><th>Brido Accident Places List Accident P</th></td<></th></t<>	New Refresh cilley 1: TruBridge Community Hospital arch: Description ~ Accident Place Description ~ Accident Viace Accident Relater Relater Accident Relater Accident Relater	New Codem Places List Accident Places List Accident Places List New Refresh cility 1: TruBridge Community Hospital arch: Description ~ Accident Place Pescription ~ Accident Place Accident Places List × Accident Place Pescription ~ Accident Place Accident Places List × Accident Place Pescription ~ Accident Place Accident Places List × Accident Place <td< th=""><th>New Code Malteenance Accident Places List × Accident Places List × Image: Comparison of the Compariso</th><th>Brid Accident Place List Table Maintenance Accident Place List × N R <</th><th>Bridgy New Coldent Places List Accident Places List <</th><th>Brido Accident Places List Accident P</th></td<>	New Code Malteenance Accident Places List × Accident Places List × Image: Comparison of the Compariso	Brid Accident Place List Table Maintenance Accident Place List × N R <	Bridgy New Coldent Places List Accident Places List <	Brido Accident Places List Accident P

Accident Places List

	0	New												
Select	-		N	lew to e	enter a new	acciden ⁻	t place co	ode or	select	an	existing	code	from th	e list
		1 🕅	dit	í –										
and sele	ect	_		Edit.										

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Accident Places Codes > Select a code

-	TruBridge Tables Accident Place	Table Maintenance $\ imes$ Accident Places List $\ imes$	Accident Place \times	🟫 ዓ 🔳 🕼 📝	III 🌲 📴 🕶
2	🐢 🛃 Show Shared 🔌 Print 🥝 Delete 📙 Save 🎅 Refresh				
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital				
	Accident Place Codes				
	Accident Place Code: 11				
	Description: ONSET OF SYMPTOMS/ILLNESS				
	Occurrence Code: 11				
_					

Accident Places Maintenance

• Accident Place Code: Enter up to a 3-character alpha and/or numeric code.

- **Description:** Enter a specific Accident Description up to 35 characters in length. This description will display when using lookup option in the Place field on the Stay tab in the Registration and ADT screen.
- Occurrence Code: Enter a specific Occurrence Code that will be linked together with this Accident Code. The code must be a valid code, listed in the Occurrence Code table.

NOTE: In regards to Workman's Compensation 1500 claims, occurrence code 04, will pull the following information to locator 10a, 10b and 10c on the 1500, regardless of the description loaded in the Accident Places table.

Locator 10a: "Employment? Current or Previous" = **Yes** Locator 10b: "Auto Accident? State" = **No** Locator 10c: "Other Accident?" = **No**

The following options are available on the action bar:

- **Show Shared**: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Accident Places list



Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.

3.3 Admit and Condition Codes

6

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Admit and Condition Codes</u>

Tru	Bridge A	^{ibles} dmit Conditi	ion Cod	es List Screen
	💠 😗 Ne	w 📝 Edit	📝 Co	oncept Codes
Ac Fa	dmit and (cility 1 : Tru	Condition Bridge Com	Code	List Hospital
	Туре 🔅	Code	¢	Description \Leftrightarrow
	A	в		41/NB
	A	С		42/NBPRE
	A	D		21/URPR
	A	Е		17/EMER
	A	N		31/ELPR
	A	U		27/URER
	с	G		GOOD
	с	F		FAIR
	с	Р		POOR
	с	Е		EXPIRED
	с	U		UNKNOWN

Admit Condition Codes table

The Admit and Condition codes may be updated by selecting the code and then selecting **Edit**, respectively. To create a new Admit or Condition code select **New**.

The Admit or Condition may be edited/updated on the Admit and Condition Code Edit screen. Each code consists of a type (A for Admit or C for Condition), a single character code, and a description may be entered using up to eight characters. This table will allow a total of 50 codes to be entered.

- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings.
- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Concept Codes: Select this option to add Concept Codes to the Admit Codes.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Admit and Condition Codes > Concept Codes

ridge	Tables Admit Condition Codes I	ist Scree
4 🕅	Edit	
Admit Co	odes	
Code	Description	÷
в	41/NB	
с	42/NBPRE	
D	21/URPR	
Е	17/EMER	
N	31/ELPR	
U.	27/URER	

Admit Codes

Select the Admit Code.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Admit and Condition Codes > Concept Codes > <u>Selected Admit Code</u>

-	TruBridge Admit Conditio	n Codes List Screen	Table Maintenance 🛛 🛛	Admit Condition Codes List Screen ×	A	n Q	- ()	1	₩ ♠	JP 👻
2	💠 🛃 Save									
	Concept Code Edit									
	TruBridge Community Hosp	ital								
	Admit Code:	E								
	Priority of Admission Code:	1								
	HCS Concept Code:	۹								
	Type of Admission:	٩								
	Point of Origin Code:	7								
	Concept Code:									
_	HCS Concept Code:	٩								

Concept Code Edit

Below is an explanation of each field.

- Admit Code: The selected Admit Code
- Priority of Admission Code: The priority of the selected Admit Code.
- HCS Concept Code: Enter the Concept Code for the priority of admission. This field can accommodate up to 20 characters.
- **Type of Admission:** Use the magnifying glass lookup to select the type of admission for the Admit Code.
- Point of Origin Code: The point of origin of the selected Admit Code.
- **Concept Code:** Enter the Concept Code for the point of origin. This field can accommodate up to 20 characters.

-

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

3.4 Admit Origin Codes

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Admit Origin Codes

	TruBridge	Table Adm	s nission Origin Codes List							Table Ma	aintenance	× A	dmission Orig	in Codes Li	st ×		f C		s 🖌		٨	JP -	
Ľ	٠	😑 New	📝 Edit ಿ Refresh																				
	Facility	1 : TruBri	dge Community Hospital																				
	Search:			Description	~																		
	Origin	Code	Description																				÷
	CL		CLINIC																				
	ER		EMERGENCY ROOM																				
	НМ		HOME																				
	NH		NURSING HOME																				
	WK		WORK																				
_							Ad	mit O	rigin	Code	s List												
_		0	New																				
Se	lect	_	Ne	w to ent	er a i	new	adm	nit oi	rigin	l cod	le or	se	lect a	an e	xisti	ng	CO	de t	ron	n tr	ne I	ist a	and
		2	Edit																				
sel	ect		Edit.																				

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Admit Origin Codes > Select a Code

-	TruBridge Admission Origin Code		Admission Origin Code $ imes$	🟫 ୍ 🔲 🕼 🍞	· III 🌲 🗾	JP 👻
2	ቀ 🔣 Show Shared 🗞 Print 🔇 Delete 📙 Save 🧉	P Refresh				
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital					
	Admission Origin Codes					
	Origin Code: HM					
	Description: HOME					
_	Core Measures Admission Source:					

Admit Origin Codes Maintenance

- Origin Code: Enter a 2-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- Origin Description: Enter a specific Origin Description up to 20 characters in length. This description will display when using lookup option in the Origin field on the Stay tab in the Registration and ADT screen. Selecting **Delete** will delete the code.
- Core Measures System Discharge Status: Enter the code that is used to convert the Admit Origin Code information into the Core Measures System.

- **Show Shared**: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Admit Origin Codes list



Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

10

Chapter 4 Call Referral Tables

These tables should be set up prior to utilizing the Call Referral System, which is accessed through **Call Referral Registration** on the Hospital Base Menu.

The Call Referral tables each contain Code and Description fields. The Codes may be alpha and/or numeric and range from one to four characters. The Description field for each option is up to 25 characters in length, with the exception of the Assessment Disposition Table which is 20 characters in length.

Enter the codes and descriptions in each of the nine tables listed under the Call Referral Tables section of the Patient tab.

Chapter 5 Churches

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Churches

-	TruBridge	- Tables • Church Table List · - 🔥 🔍 🖬 🏚 🔐 🗸	
P		New 📝 Edit ಿ Refresh	٦
	Facility 1 Search:	1 : TruBridge Community Hospital Description >	
	Church	h \Leftrightarrow Description	÷
	CCC	CENTRAL CHURCH OF CHRIST	
	СНВ	COTTAGE HILL BAPTIST	
	FBC	FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH	
	LFC	LITTLE FLOWER CATHOLIC	
	UMC	UNITED METHODIST CHURCH	
	UPC	UNITED PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH	
_		Church Code List	
		O New	
Se	lect	New to enter a new church code or select an existing code from the list a	nd
		72 Edit	
sel	ect	Edit.	

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Churches > <u>Select a Code</u>

-	TruBridge Tables Church Table Code		Church Table Code $ imes$	A	ର୍ 🗖 ।	r 7	₩ ♠	JP 👻
2	🝬 🚼 Show Shared 🔌 Print 🔇 Delete 📙 Save ಿ Refresh							
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital							
	Church Table							
	Church ID: LFC							
	Description: LITTLE FLOWER CATHOLIC							

Church Code Maintenance

- Church ID: Enter a 3-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- **Church Name:** Enter a specific Church Name using up to 35 characters. This description will display when using lookup option in the Church field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen.

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe

- Delete:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Churches Code list

Back Arrow to return to the previous screen. Select

Chapter 6 Country Codes

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Country Codes

-	TruBridge	e Table Cou	s ntry Codes	List										Table	e Maintenance	× Cou	untry Cod	es List 🛛 🗙	<	A	Q		1	 ,	1	JP 👻	
P		😑 New	📝 Edit	2 Refree	h																						٦
	Facility Search:	1 : TruBri	dge Comm	unity Ho	pital	Count	y Code	~																			
	Count	try Code	\$ D	escriptior																						÷	î
	AC		A	SCENSION	I																						1
	AD		A	NDORRA																							
	AE		U	INITED AR	AB EMIRATE:	5																					
	AF		A	FGHANIST	AN																						
	AG		A	NTIGUA A	ND BARBUD	4																					
_											Coun	try (Codes	s List													
		0	Nev	N																							
Se	lect	-	-	2	Nev	v to	ente	er a	new	v c	ount	ry	code	e or	sele	ct ar	n e	xisti	ng	cod	le	froi	n t	he	list	ar	۱d
		2	Edit	1																							
sel	ect	-	-	il e	dit.																						

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Country Codes > Select a Code

itry code	
ntry Name:	USA

Country Codes Maintenance

- Country Code: Enter a 2-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- **Country Name:** Enter a specific country name. This name will display when using lookup option in the Country field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen.

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings

14	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

• Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Country Codes table list



Chapter 7 County Codes

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > County Codes

M TruBri	dge County Co	odes List						Tab	le Maintenance	× C	ounty Codes I	ist ×	1	\ Q	•	2	₩ ♠	JP 🗸
2 +	🧿 New 📝 🗄	Edit 🏾 🎅 Refresh	ì															
Facili Searc	ity 1 : TruBridge C	community Hosp	pital	ode ~														
Cou	unty Code 🔶	Description																\$
BLI	D	BALDWIN																
МО	B	MOBILE																
						Count	ty Code	es List										
	😐 N	ew																
Selec	t		New to e	nter a ne	w cou	unty c	code o	or sel	ect an	n exi	sting	cod	e fro	om '	the	list	and	select
₿ E	dit	dit.																

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > County Codes > Select a County Code

-	TuBridge County Code	Table Maintenance 🐇 County Codes List 🗧 County Code 🗙 👘 🗬 🗔 🕼 😰 👯 🌲 💷 🗸
R	🗢 🛛 🛃 Show Shared 🔌 Print 🔇 Delete 📙 Save ಿ Refresh	
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital	
	County Codes	
	County Code: MOB	
	Description: MOBILE	



- County Code: Enter a 3-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- **Description:** Enter a specific city or county name. This name will display when using lookup option in the County field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen.

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the County Codes list

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 8 Discharge Codes

The Discharge Codes table is used to create a facility-defined listing of discharge codes used in patient registration and census functions.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Discharge Codes

TruBridge Tables Discharge	Code List	Table Maintenance 🛛 👋	Discharge Code List $ imes$	俞 Q 🔲	B	₩ ♠	JP 👻
🍞 🔶 😋 New 🕑 E	dit ಿ Refresh						
Facility 1 : TruBridge C	ommunity Hospital						
Search:	Description ~						
Discharge Code 🔶	Description						\$
L	Home Hospice						
1	Nursing Home						
N	Skilled Nursing Facility						
к	Hospice in Medical Facility including Nursing Homes						
E	Expired						
0	Other Facility Not Elsewhere Defined						
	Discharge	Code List					



Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Discharge Codes > <u>Select a Code</u>

r	TruBridge Tables Discharge Code List		Table Maintenance 🛛 🛛	Discharge Code List $ imes$	n 0	ι 🗖	🕼 🗾	₩ ♦	JP 👻
2	ቀ 🔣 showshared 🗞 print 📙 Sa	ave 🔇 Delete							
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospita	l d							
	Discharge Codes								
	Discharge Code:	Н							
	Disposition Code / Short Desc:	01 HOME							
	Long Description:	Home							
	SNOMED:	65537008							
	Core Measures System Discharge Status:	01							

Discharge Code Maintenance

- **Discharge Code:** Enter the 1-character discharge code that will be chosen during Registration.
- **Disposition Code/Short Desc:** Enter the 2-character disposition code that needs to pull for billing and a 5-character short description of the discharge code.
- Long Description: Enter the full description of the discharge code. This may be up to 60 characters long and will display when using the lookup option.
- **SNOMED**: Enter the SNOMED code associated with the discharge disposition code. This may be up to 20 characters long.

The following settings will be pre-loaded in the Snomed field:

Discharge Disposition Code	Snomed
01	65537008
02	306699001
05	306699001
06	10161009
07	445060000
20	371828006
40	371828006
41	371828006
42	371828006
43	306699001
50	428361000124107
51	428371000124100
61	306701001
62	433591000124103
63	306699001
65	306699001
66	306701001

• Core Measures System Discharge Status: Enter the code that is used to convert the discharge code information into the Core Measures System.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Delete: Deletes the table settings

Select

Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 9 Employers

To create a new employer code, enter a 3-character, alpha/numeric code and a description up to 25 characters in length. The Employers table stores the employer's name, address and phone number. The available options in the Employer table and their descriptions are listed below:

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Employers</u>

-	TruBridge	Table Emj	s oloyer Tabl	e List				_		_	_		_		Table	e Mainte	nance ×	Em	ployer Ta	ble List	×		ft 1	२ 🗖		2		<u>۾</u>	JP -	
P		New	📝 Edit	2 Refresh														-												
	Facility 1	1 : TruBri	idge Comn	nunity Hosp	oital																									
	Search:					Descrip	tion ~]																						
	Code		Desc	ription																									÷	^
	002		CVS	DRUG STOR	E																									
	003		CPSI																											
	004		DEL	MONTE																										
	007		PRO	VIDENCE HO	OSPITAL																									
	009		RBC	BANK																										
	010		SCO	TT PAPER																										
											Em	n <mark>plo</mark> y	yers	Tabl	e Lis	st														
		0	Nev	N																										
Sel	ect	-	-		New	to	ente	r a	nev	we	em	ploy	/er	cod	e c	or s	ele	ct a	an e	exis	sting	g c	cod	e f	ror	n t	the	lis	t a	nc
		2	Edit																											
sele	ect	0		÷Е	dit.																									

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Employers > <u>Select Code</u>

TruBridge Tables Employer Table List	Table Maintenance 🔀 Employer Table List 🔀 🏫 🔍 📑 🕼 😰 👯 🌲 💵 👻
🍞 🔄 🖨 🖓 Save 🔇 Delete	
Employer Table Edit	
Employer Code:	011
Name:	HILL & BROOKS COFFEE
Address 1:	1322 HILL AVENUE
Address 2:	
City:	MOBILE
State:	AL
Zip Code:	36606
Phone:	2514435122
Inactive:	
Industry Code:	1370 Beverage manufacturing

Employers Table Edit

- Employer Code: Enter a 3-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- Name: Enter the employer's name.
- Address 1: Enter the employer's street address or Post Office Box number.

- Address 2: Enter the employer's other address if applicable.
- City, State, Zip Code: Enter the City, State and Zip Code in which the employer is located.
- **Phone:** Enter the employer's area code and phone number. Do not separate numbers with any punctuation marks.
- **Inactive:** Selecting this field will disallow the Employer code to show in a lookup option or be entered in TruBridge EHR. This employer may be activated at anytime by deselecting this field.
- **Industry Code:** Using the magnifying glass lookup, select the Industry Code associated with the employer.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings

Select

20

Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 10 Immunization Publicity Code

The Immunization Publicity Code table provides a listing of HL7 immunization publicity codes that may be transmitted to the Immunization Registry. This table pulls to the Immunization Publicity Code field in Additional Demographics on the Person Profile.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Immunization Publicity Code</u>

TruBr	ridge Immuni	tion Publicity Codes 🔨 Table Maintenance 🔬 Immunization Publicity Codes 🗴 🏫 🔍 🔲 🕼 😰 🐺 🚛 💵 🗸
7	🕨 🧿 New 📝	dit 🥭 Refresh
Facil Sear	ility 1 : TruBridge	ommunity Hospital
Co	ode 🍦	Description
01	1	No reminder/recall
02	2	Reminder/recall - any method
03	3	Reminder/recall - no calls
04	4	Reminder only - any method
05	5	Reminder only - no calls
06	5	Recall only - any method
07	7	Recall only - no calls
08	3	Reminder/recall - to provider
09	Э	Reminder to provider
10)	Only reminder to provider, no recall
11	1	Recall to provider
12	2	Only recall to provider, no reminder

Immunization Publicity Code List



Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Immunization Publicity Code > Select a Code

-	TruBridge Ir	bles nmunization Publicity Codes		Immunization Publicity Codes $ imes$	ନ ଦ 🗖	r 7	₩ ♠	JP 👻
P	💠 💊 Pri	nt 😢 Delete 📙 Save 🥏 Refresh						
	Facility 1 : Tru	Bridge Community Hospital						
	Publicity Cod	es						
	Code:	01						
	Description:	No reminder/recall						

Immunization Publicity Code Maintenance

- Code: Enter the 2-character publicity code
- Description: Enter the publicity code description. This may be up to 50 characters.

22

The following Immunization Publicity Codes will be pre-loaded in the system:

Code	Description
01	No reminder/recall
02	Reminder/recall - any method
03	Reminder/recall - no calls
04	Reminder only - any method
05	Reminder only - no calls
06	Recall only - any method
07	Recall only - no calls
08	Reminder/recall - to provider
09	Reminder to provider
10	Only reminder to provider, no recall
11	Recall to provider
12	Only recall to provider, no reminder

- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Immunization Publicity Code list



Chapter 11 Registration Screening

The Registration Screening table is used by facilities to enable the Ebola Virus Initial Screening questionnaire to display during registration. If set to Active, the questionnaire will display once a temporary visit, or hospital visit, has been created.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Registration Screeni
--

-	TruBridge Registration Screening Lookup				Registration Screening Lookup $~ imes~$	🏫 ଦ 🗖	()	₩ ♠	JP 👻
P	ቀ 📝 Edit <i>ஜ</i> Refresh								
	Registration Screening Lookup Search:								
	Title	Туре							*
	Ebola Virus Initial Screening	С	Ν						
_			Registratio	on Screening Look	up				

Edit.

Select an existing title from the list then select

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Registration Screening > Select Title

-	TruBridge	Tables Registration Screening Edit	Table Maintenance $ imes$ Registration Screening Lookup $ imes$	Registration Screening Edit \times	🔒 ଦ୍ 🗖 🕼 🖉 🌐 🎍 💵 🗸
2	. 🔶 🖡	J Save			
	Registr	ration Screening List			
	Type:	Clindoc ~			
	Title:	Ebola Virus Initial Screening Q			
	Active: (0			



- **Type:** This field will display either Clindoc or Eform. If the facility is using the Documentation library, "Clindoc" will display, otherwise, it will display "Eform". This will determine where the questionnaire will pull from. This field may not be manipulated.
- **Title:** The field will display the title of the document. The only document that will display at this time is the Ebola Virus Initial Screening. This field may not be manipulated.
- Active: Select this field to activate the questionnaire so that it will display automatically during registration. If this field is set to inactive, the questionnaire will not display.

The following options are available on the action bar:

• Save: Saves changes made to the table settings

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 12 Emergency Room Log

12.1 Arrival Modes

24

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Arrival Modes</u>

	TruBridge	Tables Arrival Modes List						Table N	laintenance >	< Arrival Mo	odes List 🛛 🛛		ନ ଦ		r 💅	₩ ♠	JP	-
2		New 📝 Edit ಿ Refresh																
	Facility 1 : T	ruBridge Community Hospital																
	Search:	Des	cription ~															
	Arrival Co	de 🍦 Description																÷
	AT	AIR TRANSPORT																
	АМ	AMBULANCE																
	со	CAR																
	FV	FAMILY VEHICLE																
	PO	POLICE CARE																
	PT	PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION																
	ST	STRETCHER																
	WK	WALK-IN																
_					^	\rrival	Mode	e liet										
						liivai	woue	5 213										
		Now																
Se	lect	New to	o enter a	a new a	arriva	al co	de or	r selec	ct an e	existin	ng coo	de fr	om	the	list	and	sel	ect
17	P Edit																	
12	Luit																	
		Edit.																

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Arrival Modes > Select a Code

•	TruBridge Tables Arrival Mode	Table Maintenance 💠 Arrival Modes List 💠 🛛 Arrival Mode 🗴 👘 👇 🚍 🕼 🎽 💷 👻
2	💠 🛛 🞅 Refresh 🔣 Show Shared 🔌 Print 🙆 Delete 🕌 Save	
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital	
	Arrival Modes	
	Arrival Code: AM	
	Description: AMBULANCE	

Arrival Modes Maintenance

- Arrival Code: Enter a 2-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- **Description:** Enter the specific Mode of Arrival using up to 30 characters. This name will display when using the ER Log from the Registration and ADT screen in the Mode of Arrival field.

The following options are available on the action bar:

• Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.

- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Arrival Modes list

Select

Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.

12.2 Disposition Codes

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Disposition Codes

-	TruBridge Tables Disposition	i Codes List Table Maintenance 🖉 Disposition Codes List 🗴 👘 🔍 🗐 🕼 🏥 🌲 🖵 👻
2	💠 🧿 New 📝 Ed	lit 🤣 Refresh
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Co Search:	mmunity Hospital Code ~
	Disposition Code 🌲	Description
	A	АМА
	с	САН
	E	EXPIRED
	н	HOME
	1	HOSPICE
	N	INPATIENT
	0	OTHER
	Р	PSYCH
	R	REHAB
	s	SNF
	Z	OTHER HOSPITAL

Disposition Codes List

.	🙁 New	
Select		New to enter a new disposition code or select an existing code from the list and
	📝 Edit 📗	
select		Edit.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Disposition Codes > Select a Code

-	TruBridge Tables Disposition Code	Table Maintenance $\ imes$ Disposition Codes List $\ imes$	Disposition Code \times	A	৫ 🗖	()	Ľ	₩ ♠	JP 👻
P	🐢 🛃 Show Shared 🔌 Print 🙆 Delete 🕌 Save 🥏 Refresh								
	Disposition Code Table Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital								
	Disposition Code: H								
	Description: HOME								
_	Concept Code:								



- Disposition Code: Enter a one-character alpha or numeric code.
- **Description:** Enter the specific Disposition Code using up to 30 characters. This name will display when using lookup option in the Disposition field on the ER Log.
- **Concept Code:** Enter the Concept Code using up to 20 characters. This field will be used for Meaningful Use.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Disposition Codes list



Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

12.3 Triage Levels

select Edit.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Triage Levels

	TruBridge	Tables Triage Levels List				1	āble Maintenance 🛛 🗙	Triage Levels Lis	t ×	角 ৎ	🔳 🕼 I	r III 🛉	JP 👻
V		👂 New 🛛 📝 Edit Refres	I										
	Facility 1	: TruBridge Community Hos	pital										
	Search:		Code ~										
	Triage C	Code 💠 Description											\$
	1	Resuscitation											
	2	Emergency											
	3	Urgent											
	4	Semi-Urgent											
	5	Non-Urgent											
					Triage Le	evels List	:						
Se	lect	 New Edit 	New to enter	a new tria	age leve	el code	or selec	t an ex	isting	code	e fron	n the	list and

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake> Triage Levels > Select a Code

•	TruBridge Triables Triage Levels Maintenance	Table Maintenance $ imes$	Triage Levels List $ imes$	Triage Levels Maintenance $ imes$	ત વ	1	₩ ♠	JP -
2	ቀ 🔣 Show Shared 🗞 Print 🙆 Delete 🕌 Save 🎅 Refresh							
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital							
	Triage Level							
	Triage Code: 2							
	Description: Emergency							



- Triage Code: Enter a one-character alpha or numeric code.
- **Description:** Enter a specific Triage Level using up to 30 characters. This name will display when using lookup option in the Triage Level field in the ER Log.

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings

	28	Table
--	----	-------

• Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Triage Levels list

Select Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.
29

Chapter 13 Enterprise Wide Scheduling Tables

13.1 EWS Anesthesia Types

This table is not used at this time.

13.2 EWS Anesthesiologist

This table is not used at this time.

13.3 EWS Conflict Codes

This table is not used at this time.

13.4 EWS Consolidation Codes

This table is not used at this time.

13.5 EWS Control Table

This table is not used at this time.

13.6 EWS Print Preferences

This table is not used at this time.

Chapter 14 Cycle Billing

Each Financial Class that will use Cycle Billing must have an entry in the Cycle Billing table. The Cycle Billing Table determines the frequency of each cycle based on patient type. Cycles may be defined using Financial Class, Stay Type, Sub Type and Service Code. Cycles containing the same combination of Financial Class, Stay Type, Sub Type and Service Code may not be made within the table.

To begin select **Cycle Billing** from the Patient Intake tables screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Cycle Billing

TruBridge Cycle Billing List		Table Ma	intenance $ imes$ Cycle Billing List $ imes$	🔒 ଦ୍ 🔳 🕼 💕	III 🌲 🚦
🔶 🔷 🖓 New 📝 Edit Refresh					
Cycle Billing Patient Type List Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital Search:					
Description	💠 🛛 Cycle Type	Use Cert Date			
Blue Cross SNF	Number of Days	Ν			
MEDICAID SNF	Weekly	Ν			
Weekly Medicare SNF	Weekly	Ν			

Cycle Billing Patient Type List

The Cycle Billing Patient Type List will display. The following information displays for each existing cycle:

- **Description**: The name of the billing cycle.
- **Cycle Type**: The frequency of the cycle. This field will display either End of Month, Number of Days, Weekly, or None depending on the Cycle Type that was chosen for this cycle.
- Use Cert Date: This field will display a Y if Use Cert (Certification) Date was selected when the cycle was created. An N will display if this field was left blank.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Back Arrow: Select this option to return to the Patient Intake table screen.
- New: Select this option to create a new billing cycle.
- Edit: Select an existing billing cycle from the list, then select Edit to update an existing billing cycle.
- Refresh: Select this option to update the Cycle Billing Patient Type List with recent changes.

Select **New** to create a new billing cycle.

TruBridge Cycle Billing List			Table Maintenance 🛛 👋	Cycle Billing List $ imes$	🔒 ର୍ 🔳 🕼 関	* 🏭 🌲 🖉
💠 📙 Save 💰 Check fo	r Duplicates 🛛 Delete 🍞 Edit Fi	aancial Classes 🛛 🖹 Edit Sub Types 🍞 Edit Service Co	odes			
Cycle Billing Patient Typ Facility 1 : TruBridge Commun	e Edit ity Hospital					
Description: Weekly M	edicare SNF					
Cycle Type: O None	○ End of Month ○ Nu	mber of Days:	ednesday ~			
Use Cert End Date:						
Stay Types: 1 2	3 🗹 4 🗌 5					
Financial Classes: 🗌 All		Sub Types: 🗸 All		Service Codes: 🗌 All		
Financial Class	\$	Sub Type	\$	Service Code	÷	
MEC Medicare - SNF				H SNF		
Duplicates						
Description	🚖 Fin	Class 🌰 Stav Type 🌲 Sub Type	e 🌢 Service Code 🚖	Cycle Type 🍐		

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Cycle Billing > New

Cycle Billing Patient Type Edit

- **Description**: Enter a name for the billing cycle. A name is required for each billing cycle.
- Cycle Type: Select how often claims should be generated for this cycle.
 - None: Select for billing cycles that will not use the other cycle types. For example, if a cycle should be run based on Pre-Certification dates and not based on End of Month, Number of Days, or Weekly cycle types.
 - End of Month: Select for billing cycles that should generate claims on the last day of the month.
 - **Number of Days**: Select for billing cycles that should generate claims for a specified number of days. If selected, the length (in days) of the cycle will need to be entered.
 - Weekly: Select for billing cycles that should generate claims weekly. If selected, the day that the cycle should end should be selected from the drop-down.
- Use Cert End Date: Select this option when the cycle should be based on the Pre-Certification End Date that is entered in the Pay Source table. This option may be used along with other cycle types. If no other cycle types will be used, then None should be selected as the Cycle Type.
 - **Example1**: If Use Cert End Date is selected and Cycle Type is set to None, then the cycle will be generated using the Pre-certification From and To Dates. For example, if the Pre-Certification From date is 06/01/18 and the Pre-Certification To date is 06/15/18 the billing cycle would begin on 6/1 and end on 6/15; one claim would be generated for the Pre-Certification period.
 - Example 2: If Use Cert End Date is selected and another Cycle Type is selected, then claims will generate based on the frequency designated by the Cycle Type, but claims will stop generating when the Pre-Certification To date is less than or equal to the Next Cycle End Date. For example, if the Pre-Certification To date is 06/10/18 and the Next Cycle End Date is 06/13/18, then a claim would not be generated because the Pre-Certification has expired for the billing period.
- **Stay Types**: Select the Stay Types that will use this billing cycle.

32	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake
----	------------------------------------

- Financial Class: This box identifies which financial classes will use this billing cycle. Select the All checkbox if all Financial classes will use this billing cycle or select Edit Financial Classes from the action bar to select specific financial classes. See below for details.
- **Sub Type**: This box identifies which Sub Types will use this billing cycle. Select the **All** checkbox if all Sub Types will use this billing cycle or select **Edit Sub Types** from the action bar to select specific Sub Types. See below for details.
- Service Code: This box identifies which Service Codes will use this billing cycle. Select the All checkbox if all Service Codes will use this billing cycle or select Edit Service Codes from the action bar to select specific Service Codes. See below for details.

NOTE: The Financial Class, Sub Type and Service Code fields must be answered; either the All box should be checked or the Edit options should be used to select specific codes. If these fields are not addressed, the **Check for Duplicates** option will not become active and the billing cycle cannot not be saved.

To add specific Financial Classes, Sub Types or Service Codes to the billing cycle, select **Edit Financial Classes**, **Edit Sub Types** or **Edit Service Codes** to display the selection screen. This screen allows codes to be searched and added to the billing cycle.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Cycle Billing > New > Edit Financial Classes

-	TruBridge Tables Cycle Billing List				Table Maintenance $ imes$	Cycle Billing List $ imes$	A	৫ 🗖	(JP 👻
P	💠 🛛 👩 Add To Selected 🚫 Clear All Selected	🔇 Remove 🌩 Continue								
	Insurance Company Selection									
	Search			Selected						
	Search:			MEC		Medicare - SNF				
	B BCBS OF ALA - I	P	<u>^</u>							
	B1 BCBS OUT OF S	FATE -I/P								
	B2 NATIONAL BLUI	CROSS-I/P F								
	B3 FEDERAL BLUE	CROSS-I/P F								
_	B4 COMPANION B/	C-I/P G								

Insurance Company Selection

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Back Arrow: Select this option to return to the Cycle Billing Patient Type Edit screen.
- Add to Selected: After selecting a code from the Search list, select this option to add the code to the Selected list.
- Clear All Selected: Select his option to remove all codes from the Selected list.
- **Remove**: After selecting a code from the Selected list, select this option to remove the code from the Selected list.
- Continue: Select this option once all codes have been added to the Selected list.

Once the Cycle Billing Patient Type Edit screen is completed, select **Check for Duplicates**. This will populate the Duplicates box at the bottom of the screen. If duplicate entries exist they will display here. If no duplicates exist it will say "No Duplicates Found."

No billing cycle may have the same combination of Financial Class, Stay Type, Sub Type and Service Code. For example, if Billing Cycle 1 has Stay Type 1, Financial Class M, Sub Type 01, and Service Code P and Billing Cycle 2 has Stay Type 1, Financial Class M, Sub Type 01 and Service Code ALL - then a duplicate entry would exist because the Service Code P is included in both billing cycles.

Check for Duplicates must be selected before the Save option will become active. If duplicates entries exist, the Cycle Billing table will need to be modified before the billing cycle can be saved. If there are no duplicate entries, select **Save** to add the billing cycle to the Cycle Billing table. The **Delete** option will allow the billing cycle to be removed from the Cycle Billing table. Select the **Back Arrow** to return to the Cycle Billing Patient Type List screen.

Chapter 15 Ethnicity Codes

The Ethnicity Code table is used to create a listing of ethnicity codes used in patient registration and census functions.

Select	O New	New to enter a	a new ethnicity co	ode, or select an	existing code	from the list and
select	📝 Edit	Edit.				

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Ethnicity Codes > Select a Code

-	TruBridge Ethnicity Cor	de	les List × Ethnicity Code ×	🔒 ର 🔳 🕼 🖉 🏢 🌲	JP -
2	💠 🛛 🚼 Show Shared	🗞 Print 😢 Delete 📙 Save 🥏 Refresh			
	Ethnicity Codes Facility 1 : TruBridge Con	nmunity Hospital			
	Ethnicity Code:	N			
	Description:	Not Hispanic or Latino			
	Core Measures:	N			
	Abstracting:				
	MU Value:	2186-5 Not Hispanic or Latino			
	State Quality Reporting:				
_					

Ethnicity Codes Maintenance

- Ethnicity Code: Enter the 1-character ethnicity code that will be chosen during Registration. The following ethnicity codes are pre-loaded:
 - H-Hispanic/Latino
 - N-Non-Hispanic/Latino
 - U-Declined to Specify
- **Description**: Enter the description of the ethnicity code. This may be up to 25 characters long and will display when using the lookup option.
- Core Measures: This field will default to Y for ethnicity code H-Hispanic/Latino, N for ethnicity codes N-Non-Hispanic and U-Declined to Specify. If a new ethnicity code is created, enter a Y for Hispanic ethnicity codes or a N for Non-Hispanic ethnicity codes.
- Abstracting: Enter the state abstracting value.
- **MU Value**: Using the magnifying glass lookup, select the MU Standard Value associated with the ethnicity code. Leave this field blank if there is not a code to match the ethnicity. The description of MU Value code loaded here will pull to the Ethnicity field on the CCD. The following MU Standard Values will be preloaded:
 - 2135-2 Hispanic or Latino
 - 2186-5 Not Hispanic or Latino
- State Quality Reporting: Enter the 9-digit code used for state quality reporting.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- **Show Shared**: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected, the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- Delete :Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Ethnicity Code list

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 16 Exam Types

36

The system uses Exam Types for the Radiology Schedule to determine which diagnostic imaging items appear on the schedule. Exam Type also allows the radiology schedule to be printed or sorted by exam type. Exam Types are required when printing the Composite Requisition.

- For setup, the appearance of the Complete Schedule versus the Start/End Schedule is determined by **Use Start/End Schedule** field in the Radiology Control Table, page 2.
- An exam type code must be entered in the **Ancillary Exam Type** field in Item Order Entry Information.

Access to the Business Office and Charge/Inventory Tables are necessary to define Ancillary Exam Types. Notify the site contact or TruBridge for additions or changes to this option.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Exam Types

-	TruBridge Tables Ancillary I	Exam Types	Table Maintenance 🛛 🖌 Ancillary Exam Types 🔀 🏠 🖓 🖬 🌲 🗾 🗸
2	💠 🧿 New 📝 E	Edit 🏾 🎅 Refresh	
	Facility 1 : TruBridge C Search: Department	Exam Code	Description ~ Exam Description
	034	СТ	CT SCAN
	036	СТ	Computerized Tomog
	022	DX	DIAGNOSTIC
	034	XR	DIAGNOSTIC XRAY
	034	MR	MAGNETIC IMAGING





Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Exam Types > <u>Select an Exam Type</u>

-	TruBridge Tables Ancillary Exam	Type Maintenance		Table Maintenance $~ imes$	Ancillary Exam Types 🛛 🛛	Ancillary Exam Type Maintenance $~ imes~$	ନ ର 🗖	F F	' Ⅲ ♠	JP 👻
P	ቀ 🛛 🚼 Show Shared 🔒	🖕 Print 🔇 Delete 🔚 Save	arefresh							
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Comm	unity Hospital								
	Ancillary Exam Type Mainten	ance								
	Department:	036 🔍								
	Code:	US								
	Description:	ULTRASOUND								
	Pull Slip TTY:									
	Composite Requistion TTY	401								
	Flash Card Option:									
	1 - Left Justified									
	2 - Centered	1								
	3 - Right Justified									
	4 - Landscape									

Ancillary Exam Type Maintenance

- Department: Enter the three-digit department number for Radiology.
- Code: Enter a 2 character Exam Code. Example (XR=XRAY, NM=NUCLEAR MEDICINE, US=ULTRASOUND, MM=MAMMO).
- **Description**: Enter the description that corresponds to the exam code. This field allows the entry of up to 20 characters.
- Pull Slip TTY: Enter the TTY# to which the Pull Slip prints.
- **Composite Requisition TTY**: Enter the TTY# to which the Composite Requisition prints.
- Flash Card Option: Define orientation of Flash Card (Left Justified, Right Justified, Centered or Landscape).

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected, the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete** :Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Ethnicity Code list



Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

NOTE: The Pull slip and Composite Requisition may be printed to separate printers or to a multidrawer printer with appropriate drawer designations defined in the Device Control Table. The hospital name and address information for the Pull Slip and Composite Requisition pull from page 4 of the Radiology Control Table.

The positioning of the Composite Requisition may be adjusted via the Device Control Table.

Chapter 17 Race Codes

The Race Code table is used to create a listing of race codes used in patient registration and census functions.



Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Race Codes > <u>Select a Race Code</u>

-	TruBridge Race Code		ace Codes List 🛛 🛛	Race Code ×	ft 1	২ 🗖	1	₩ ♠	JP 👻
R	🗢 🛛 🛃 Show Shared	🗞 Print 🔇 Delete 📙 Save 🎅 Refresh							
	Race Code Facility 1 : TruBridge Con	imunity Hospital							
	Race Code:	AFAMER							
	Description:	AFRICAN AMERICAN							
	Core Measures Value:	2 - Black v							
	MU Value:	2054-5 Black or African American							
	Abstracting:								
	State Quality Reporting:								



- Race Code: Enter the race code that will be entered during registration, this may be up to six characters.
- **Description**: Enter the description of the race code. This may be up to 30 characters long and will display when using the lookup option.
- Core Measures Value: Using the drop-down menu, select the code that is used to convert the race code information into the Core Measures System.
- **MU Value**: Using the magnifying glass lookup, select the MU Standard Value associated with the race code. Leave this field blank if there is not a code to match the race. The description of MU Value code loaded here will pull to the Race field on the CCD. The following MU Standard Values will be preloaded:
 - 1002-5 American Indian or Alaska Native
 - 2028-9 Asian
 - 2054-5 Black or African American
 - 2076-8 Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander
 - 2106-3 White
- Abstracting: Enter the state abstracting value.
- State Quality Reporting: Enter the 9-digit code used for state quality reporting.

40	Table	Maintenance -	Patient	Intake
----	-------	---------------	---------	--------

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Race Codes list



Chapter 18 Religions

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Religions</u>

•	TruBridge	Table Reli	is igions List								1	Table Maintenanc	ie × I	Religions List	×	🔒 ০	🔲 🕼	1	<u>ب</u>	₽ -
V		o New	📝 Edit 🛛 ar Refresh											_						
	Facility 1	1 : TruBri	idge Community Hosp	ital																
	Search:				escription	~														- 1
	Religio	on	Description																	÷
	AG		A OF GOD																	
	BA		BAPTIST																	
	CA		CATHOLIC																	
	сс		CH OF CHRIST																	
	CG		CH OF GOD																	
_								i	Religi	ions Lis	st									
		0	New																	
Sel	ect			New	to e	nter	a new	relig	jion	code	or	select	t an	exist	ing	code	from	n the	list	and
		2	Edit																	
sele	ect	-	E	dit.																

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Religions > Select a Code

-	TruBridge Religion	Table Maintenance × Religions List × Re	eligion ×	Q 🔳 🕼 📝	III 🌲 🤳 🕶
P	🔹 🛃 Show Shared 💩 Print 🔞 Delete 🕌 Save 🥏 Refresh				
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Community Hospital				
	Religion				
	Religion ID: CA				
_	Description: CATHOLIC				

Religions Maintenance

- Religion ID: Enter a 2-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- **Description:** Enter a description. This description will display when using lookup option in the Religion field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- **Print**: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings

• Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Religions list

Select Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 19 Room Accommodation

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Room Accommodation</u>



Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Room Accommodation > Select a Code

TruBridge Room Accommoda	ations List Table Maintenance 🔀 Room Accommodations List 🔀 🍙 🕞 🔽 🏭 🌲 🖵 👻
🍞 🛛 🍬 🖓 Print 🔇 Delete	🚽 Save 🛛 alle Refresh
Room Accommodation Facility 1 : TruBridge Communi	ity Hospital
Accommodation Code:	PT
Description:	PRIVATE ROOM
Room Type:	P
Room Rate:	483.85
Room Summary Code:	01
Room Stix Code:	
Revenue G/L Num:	3000003
Other Charges:	Υ
Future Rate:	0.00
Future Date:	
Stay Types:	
Healthcare Service Location:	Q
Accommodation Concept Value:	

Room Accommodations Maintenance

- Accommodation Code: Enter a 2-character alpha and/or numeric code.
- **Description:** Enter a Description using up to 25 characters that will display when using the Registration and ADT lookup option in the Admit Code field in the ADT screen.
- **Room Type:** Enter a one-character code that indicates the type of room (e.g., S-Semi-Private, I-ICU). Room Types are set up by selecting **Room Types** in the Business Office Tables.

- Room Rate: Enter the charge for this Accommodation Code. This amount will override the rate loaded in the Room Table and charge the patient's account when the Final Census is run as an update.
- **Room Summary Code:** Enter the TruBridge Summary Charge code that represents a group of chargeable items associated with a UB04 Revenue Code.
- Room Stix Code: This field is no longer used.
- **Revenue G/L Number:** Enter the General Ledger account number that will receive this revenue. If this field is left blank, the General Ledger number loaded in the Summary Code Table for this accommodation code will be used. If the Summary Code table does not have a General Ledger number loaded, the summary code loaded in the Room Table will be used to pull the correct General Ledger number.
- Other Charges Y/N: Entering Y in this field will include any other charges set in the Room Table (i.e., phone, special equipment). The charges will post to the patient's account when the Final Census is run as an update. N will exclude these charges on the Final Census.
- Future Rate/Date: Enter the future rate for this room and the date the rate increase should become effective.
- **Stay Types:** Enter the Stay Types that will use this Accommodation Code. If this field is left blank, any Stay Type will be able to use this Accommodation Code.
- Healthcare Service Location: Enter the National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN) Location Code for this department. This code will be used for Healthcare Survey, Antimicrobial and Cancer Registry reporting. The NHSN Location Codes displayed in the look-up are maintained by TruBridge.
- Accommodation Concept Value: Enter the appropriate Observation or ICU Concept Value. Select the magnifying glass to display a listing of available codes. This field is used for Quality Measures only.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Room Accommodations list

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 20 Room Types

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Room Types</u>

Tables Tables Room	ypes List	Table Maintenance $ imes$ Room Types List $ imes$	🔒 ዓ 🔲 🕼 💅 🏢 🌲 📴 🕶
🍞 🛛 🗢 🖗 🦻	Edit 🚑 Refresh		
Facility 1 : TruBridg	Community Hospital		
Search:	Description ~		
Room Type 🛛 🍦	Description		\$
E	ER ROOMS		
1	ICU		
v	IV THERA		
Ν	NUR HOME		
0	OR ROOMS		
Р	PRIVATE		
S	SEMI-PRI		

Room Types List

	O New	
Select	_	New to enter a new room type code or select an existing code from the list and
	📝 Edit	
select		Edit.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Room Types > <u>Select a Code</u>

Room Type:	S							
Description:	SEMI-PRI							
Room Types								

This table defines a one-digit code that is used in maintenance of the Room Table and Accommodation Code Table. Enter the Room Type and Description of the Room Type Code in the corresponding fields.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- **Print**: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- Delete:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings

• Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Room Types list

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 21 Rooms

When additions or changes are made to the Room Table, the Regenerate Room File (Single User), in Special Functions, may need to be run.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Rooms</u>

	TruBridge	Tables Room List					Table Maintenance $ imes$	Room List $ imes$	A	৫ 🗖	()	′ ≡ ♠	JP	•
2		New 📝 Edit ಿ Refresh												
	Facility 1 :	TruBridge Community Hospital												
	Search:	Description	Nursing Station:	All Departments		~								
	Room	\$	Description	\$	Туре		Status		\$				\$	^
	024-1		SEMI-PRIVATE		S									
	022-2		SEMI-PRIVATE		s									
	022-1		SEMI-PRIVATE		S									
	020-2		SEMI-PRIVATE		S									
	020-1		SEMI-PRIVATE		s									
_	018-2		SEMI-PRIVATE		S									_

Room List

	0	New															
Select	-		New	to e	enter	a nev	v roon	n or	select	an	existing	room	from	the	list	and	select
📝 Edit	J	Edit.															

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Rooms > Select a Room

TruBridge Room		Table Maintenance 🗴 Room List X Room X 🏫 🔍 🖽 🔍 🖵 👻 📑 🛄 🌲 🛛 🖵 👻
🖻 🛛 🍬 🛃 Show Shared	🗞 Print 🔇 Delete 📙 Save 🥏 Refresh	
Facility 1: TRUBRIDGE C	DMMUNITY HOSPITAL	
Room Information		
Room Number:	024-1	Special Equipment
Description:	SEMI-PRIVATE	Rate: 0.00
Room Type:	S Q	Summary Code:
Room Rate:	539.00	Other Equipment
Room Summary Code:	02	Rate: 0.00
Room Status:	358067 LEE ANTHONY A	Summary Code:
Phone Number:	0	Department of Health
Phone Rate:	0.00	Category: 🔍 Adult
Phone Summary Code:		Classification: Medical / Surgical
Future Rate:	0.00 Future Date: (mmddyyyy)	vesgiation. Seneral
Nursing Station:	003 Q	
Counted in Statistics:		
Maximum Occupancy:	1	
Room Active:		
Number of ARDS Sheets	0 Printer Number:	
Number of ADM Forms:	0 Printer Number: Q Q Q Q	

Rooms Maintenance

|--|

48

- Room Number: Enter a code using up to five alpha and/or numeric characters. The room numbers may include dashes.
- Description: Enter a brief description of room type using up to 25 characters. If this room has a room status of t, indicating that it is being used by the MPEMR and ED Tracking Boards, the description of the room should be what shows as the location on the tracking board.
- Room Type: Enter the one-character room type that is displayed when using the lookup when registering a patient (**P**-Private, **S**-Semi-Private, **I**-ICU, **N**-Nursery). Room Types are set up through Room Types in the Table Maintenance Menu.
- Room Rate: Enter the room rate to be charged on the Final Census. No Index Regen is necessary when changes are made to this field.
- Room Summary Code: Enter the Summary Charge Code that represents the associated UB04 Revenue Code.
- Room Status: If the room is occupied, the patient's name and account number will display here or indicate "EMPTY" if unoccupied. Any character in this field will make the room unavailable for admitting. An X will exclude this room from Administrative Statistics. A room status of t will designate the room for use by the MPEMR and ED Tracking Boards. If a room has a status of t, it will not be displayed during registration and a patient will not be able to be admitted to the room. In addition, a room with a status of t will be excluded from Executive Information Statistics.
- **Phone Number:** Enter up to five digits for the room extension.
- Phone Rate: Enter the daily charge for phone use that will appear on the Final Census if applicable.
- Phone Summary Code: Enter the Summary Charge Code that represents the associated UB04 Revenue Code.
- Future Rate/Date: Enter the future rate for this room and the date the rate increase should become effective.
- Nursing Station: Enter the department of the Nursing Station assigned to this room. Final Census prints in order of Nursing Station. This is the only field that cannot be manipulated while the room is occupied. If this room has a room status of t, indicating that it is being used by the MPEMR and ED Tracking Boards, the nursing station will be the department onto whose tracking board the patient should fall.
- Counted In Statistics: Entering a Y in this field will include this room in Administrative Statistics Report. A N will exclude this room from the report in Executive Information. A C will allow any patients transferred from this room to a room counted in statistics to be included in the Administrative Statistics Report. Example: If an observation patient is admitted to a holding room (a non statistic room) and later moved to an inpatient room (one marked to count in statistics), this account will be included in census statistics.
- Maximum Occupancy: Allows a room to be used more than once, such as a Waiting Room. This field is a maximum of three digits.
- Room Active: If not selected, the room is not available for transfer.

- Show When Empty: When Maximum Occupancy is set for more than two, only one room will display. Once a patient is assigned, the location will become available. If deselected, the room will not display on the Tracking Board when empty.
- No. of ARDS Sheets/Printer #: Enter the number of ARDS Label Sheets to print automatically when a patient is admitted to this room. Enter the desired ARDS laser printer number where the labels should print.

NOTE: If a number of sheets is entered and no printer number, those sheets will print to the default label printer loaded in the Device Control Table for that terminal number. This feature only works with TruBridge's generic label print program. If the facility needs this to work for a custom program, it will need to be written into the custom program.

• No. of ADM Forms/Printer #: Enter the number of Admission Forms to print automatically when a patient is admitted to this room. Enter the desired printer number where the forms should print.

Special Equipment

- **Rate:** Enter any additional daily charge for special equipment that will appear on the Final Census if applicable.
- **Summary Code:** Enter the Summary Charge Code that represents the associated UB04 Revenue Code.

Other Equipment

- **Rate:** Enter any additional daily charge for any other Equipment that will appear on the Final Census if applicable.
- **Summary Code:** Enter the Summary Charge Code that represents the associated UB04 Revenue Code.

Department of Health

The following fields are for facilities that report room availability to the Department of Health. This is for instances where there is a mass emergency, the bed types and availability will be readily known.

- Category: Select one of the following categories that defines the age/size appropriateness of the room: Adult, Geriatric, Neonatal, Pediatric.
- Classification: Select one of the following classifications that defines the primary level of care and services the room is intended to support: Critical Care/Intensive Care, Intermediate/Stepdown, Medical/Surgical, Perinatal Care, Psychiatry Services, Physical Medicine & Rehab, Emergency Department.
- **Designation:** Select one of the following designations that defines the grouping of specialty care/services that the room is designated for, or the unit of where the room is located: **General**, **Burn, Cardiac, Medical, Neuro, Surgical, Transplant, Trauma/Ortho.**

NOTE: Rooms that are not grouped by specialty care/services or are used for multiple/mixed specialties should select General.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- **Show Shared**: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- Print: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- Delete:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Rooms list

Select

Back Arrow to return to the previous screen.

Chapter 22 Service Codes

Scient web Cheft > Tables > I attent intake > Service Court

																_			-
Th Th	uBridge	Service	Codes List									Table Main	itenance ×	Service Codes List	×	♠ <	9 🖪 🏢	÷ -	JP 👻
		New 🛛	'Edit 😂 Refresh																
F	acility 1 :	TRUBRID	GE COMMUNITY HOSPI	TAL															
s	earch:			Descript	ion ~]													- 1
	Service	Code 🔶	Description				\$												î
	Α		AMBULATORY SURGE	RY PATIENTS															- 11
	в		BOARDER BABY																- 11
	с		C-SECT																- 11
	CL		CLINIC																- 11
	ER		EMERGENCY ROOM																- 11
_									Servic	e Code	s List								
		0	New																
Solo	act	1	_	Now	to a	ontor	2	now	convice		lo or	solact	on	ovicting	codo	from	tho	lict	and
Seid	501				10 6	SILLEI	a		201 1100	- cou		SEIECI	an	existing	coue	nom	uie	1151	anu
		2	Edit																
ممام	+		_	4:4															
sele	Ct			αιτ.															

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Service Codes > Select a Code

TruBridge Service Code	Table Maintenance 🐇 Service Codes List 🐇 MEDICAL 🗴 🔥 🗛 🗔 😨 🖛 🌲 🔤 🚽
🙄 Service Code	🔹 🚼 Show Shared 👌 Print 🧿 Delete 🔛 Save 🤗 Refresh
SNOMED	Facility 1: TRUBRIDGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
	Service Code
	Service Code: M
	Short Description: MEDICAL
	Long Description: MEDICAL
	Inforum Patient Type code: 0
	Prioritize in Census Reports:
	Subject to LAMSC:
	Include in OP Surgery Stats:
	Inactive:

Service Codes Maintenance

- Service Code: Enter a one or 2-character alpha or numeric code.
- Short Description: Enter a description using up to eight characters. This description will display when using lookup option in the Service Code field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen.
- Long Description: Enter a description using up to 30 characters.
- Inforum Patient Type Code: This field is used with the Quorum Inforum Interface and should be used with the Patient Type codes.
- Include in 1-Day Surgery Stats (Y/N): When Y is entered, and this service code appears on an account, the account will be included in 1-day surgery statistics in Executive Information.

52	Table Maintenance -	Patient	Intake
----	---------------------	---------	--------

- **Prioritize in Census Reports Y/N**: Select Y to include this Service Code in the totals section of the Pre and Final Census reports. These reports print a maximum of 20 Service Codes. Prioritized codes pull first, and the remaining codes pull in alphabetical order.
- Subject to LAMSC Y/N: This field is for the state of Louisiana. It should be answered with a Y if the service code is subject to the Louisiana Mandated Service Charge.
- **Inactive**: If this field is selected the Service Code will not display in the Service Code lookup window.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Show Shared: If the site is sharing tables, when this option is selected the fields that are shared between facilities will be highlighted in yellow.
- **Print**: Displays the table settings in Adobe
- **Delete**:Deletes the table settings
- Save: Saves changes made to the table settings
- Refresh: Allows changes to show immediately in the Service Codes list

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

22.1 SNOMED

The SNOMED option on the navigation pane will need to be selected to add SNOMED's to the Service Code.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Service Code > Select Service Code > SNOMED

	TruBridg	Tables SNOMED		Table Maintenance	Service Codes List 🛛 🛛	MEDICAL \times	🔒 스 타 @ 🗔 🏭 🌲	JP 👻
	😋 A	id 🙁 Remove						
۹	SNOM	D List						
		Description	♦ Code ♦					
_								



Select **Add** to search for and select all applicable SNOMED codes. Once all SNOMEDs have been selected, choose **Add** again.

Chapter 23 Scheduling Tables

23.1 Tasks/Procedures

The third table that will need to be set up is the Tasks/Procedures table. This table is used to set up any and all tasks or procedures that will be performed in the facility. Each task/procedure will be set up with the amount of time it will take to complete and then resources (locations and personnel) are then attached to each task/procedure to designate where they may be performed.

There are options at the top of the screen that will allow the list to be delimited. The Specialty Task Type drop-down will allow the list to display All, Standard, Group or OR Procedure tasks. Below the drop down, tasks may be further delimited by Active Only, Inactive Only or Both. A search option is also available to search by the selected Category.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > <u>Tasks/Procedures</u>

-	TruBridge Task List					Table Maintenance	×	Task List \times		A	Q []	9	۳.	 1	•	JP 👻
	💠 🔇 New 📝 Edit 🕋 Copy 📄 Report															
	Task List Specialty Task Type: All Active Only Inactive Only Both Search:	Category:	De	scription	~]										
	Description	\$ СРТ	\$	Department	¢	Category	\$	Duration 🔶	Color		\$	Active	e	÷	Multi Re:	÷ 🕴
	Anger Management			58		Behavioral Health		60	Orange	e		Y			N	
	CBC			58		Laboratory		10	Lime			γ			N	
	СМР			58		Laboratory		10	Lime			Y			N	
	CT Chest			58		Imaging Services		30	Navy			γ			N	
	CT Chest & Labs			58					Lime			Y			N	

Table Maintenance - Tasks/Procedures

Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** The description of the task
- **CPT:** This column displays the CPT associated with the task. If multiple CPT's are associated with a task, the first will be listed with no CPT followed by each CPT code associated with the task.
- **Department:** The department that owns the task
- Category: The category assigned to the task
- Duration: The duration of the task
- Color: The color assigned to the task

- 54 Table Maintenance Patient Intake
- Active: The column displays a Y if the task is actively being used, or an N if the task is marked as inactive.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- New: Selecting this option will allow a new task to be created.
- Edit: Selecting this option will allow the information on the task to be changed.
- **Copy:** Selecting this option will allow the task information to be copied to a new task. This will include any instructions and CPT codes to copy over.
- **Report:** Selecting this option enables information from the Tasks/Procedures table to be exported into a report. After selecting **Report**, the Report Writer Parameters screen will appear, allowing filters to be applied as needed. Once all are set, select **Run Report** to generate the file.

NOTE: This report is also available within the Report Dashboard and it titled "Scheduling Task Table Setup".

Task Table Edit

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit

-	TruBridge Task	Table Maintenance 🛛 🛛 Task List 🖂 🗛 🔽 👘 🕅 🗭 📰 🌲 🐙 🛩
Task: Catego	Anger Management ry: Behavioral Health	
	💠 📙 Save 😮 Delete	
	Task Table Edit	
	Category:	Behavioral Health Q,
	Description:	Anger Management
	Owner Department:	59
	Duration:	60 minutes
	Specialty Task Type:	NA 💿 Group 💿 OR Procedure
۹	Max Patients Per Session:	20
	TeleHealth Appointment:	
	Non-Viewable Task:	
	Associated Tasks Attached:	
	May need multiple resources:	
	Assigned Color:	
	Orange	(Double click to change)
	<	
	Inactive:	
	Group Note:	Group Therapy Progress Note Q
	Individual Note:	Group Psychotherapy Progress Note Q

Table Maintenance - Tasks/Procedures

Below is an explanation of each field:

- **Category:** A category list look-up is available to choose the appropriate category for the task. These codes are set up in the <u>Categories</u> and table.
- **Description:** Description of the task.

• **Owner Department:** The department number of who will own the task. This option controls the ability to use the Check-In option from the scheduling grid.

NOTE: If a department number is not loaded, the Check-In option will not display.

• **Duration:** The number of minutes it will take to complete the task. This will be used to block off the appropriate amount of time on the schedule.

NOTE: When creating a new task, and a duration is not populated, once Save is selected, this field will default to 5 minutes.

- Specialty Task Type:
 - Group: Select this option if this task will allow multiple patients to be scheduled for the same task from the scheduling grid.
 - **OR Procedure:** This option is no longer used.
- TeleHealth Appointment: Select this option to designate the task as a TeleHealth appointment.

NOTE: This field will only display when the TeleHealth Appointment application is set to active for a facility.

• Max Patients Per Session: The number of patients allowed to be scheduled in a group session for the task. This field will only be visible if the Specialty Task Type field is set to Group. Only appointments at the Scheduled and Check-In status will be included in this count.

NOTE: If this number is increased, patients may be added to future group tasks until the max is met. If this number is decreased, the existing group appointments will not be affected, but future group appointments will read the max and not allow additions.

- Non-Viewable Task: Select this option to suppress the task from the Task Entry screen when scheduling a patient. This option should be used when the task should not be scheduled by itself but instead should be used as an Associated Task.
- Associated Tasks Attached: Select this option if the task will be used as a "shell" task. For example, if OR Procedure Series is setup as an Associated Task, then multiple other tasks may be attached and be scheduled simultaneously. If selected, only the Description and Owner Department fields will be accessible. The task will then look to the settings on the Associated Tasks screen. Associated Tasks must be added if this field is selected.

NOTE: When Associated Task is selected and then Save is selected, the Duration field will default to '0' minutes, but may be changed if needed.

• May need multiple resources: Select this option if multiple resources will need to be selected when scheduling the task. This will allow all resources associated to this task to be added or removed when scheduling.

NOTE: This option will be disabled if a Specialty Task Type of Group is selected.

• Assigned Color: Double-click this field to assign a color to the task on the scheduling grid. If a color is not assigned, the default color for the task will be white.

	Table M	aintenance -	Patient	Intake
--	---------	--------------	---------	--------

- **Inactive:** Select this option if the task will no longer be used. This will omit the task from any lookups during scheduling.
- **Group Note:** Select the magnifying glass to select a PhysDoc Template to use as a Group Note for group tasks. This field will only been enabled if the Specialty Task Type is Group.

NOTE: In order for the PhysDoc Templates to display in this lookup, "Scheduled" will need to be selected in the Physician Documentation Templates table for each template that will be used as a Group Note.

• Individual Note: Select the magnifying glass to select a ClinDoc Document to use as an individual note for individual appointments. This field will only been enabled if the Specialty Task Type is Group.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: Select this option to save any changes made to the task.
- **Delete:** Select this option to delete a task. If the task has been scheduled, the task cannot be deleted.

Task Resource

56

The Resources option on the navigation pane will need to be selected to add resources to the task.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > <u>Task</u> <u>Resources</u>

•	TruBridge Ta	^{bles} Isk Resources			e Maintenance $ imes$ Task List $ imes$	Anger Management $ imes$	ନ ର 🗖	I	' ⊞ ♠	JP 👻
Task: Categor	Anger Mana Behavioral H	gement Health								
	🛟 Add (3	Remove								
٠	Task Resource	<u>s:</u>								
8	Description	\$	Туре	¢						
	Meeting Roon	n 1	Location							
٠	Meeting Roon	n 2	Location							

Table Maintenance - Tasks/Procedures

Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** Displays the description of the resource associated with the task.
- Type: Displays the type of resource (Location or Personnel) associated with the task.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Add: Selecting this option will allow resources to be added to the task.
- **Remove:** Selecting this option will remove a resource from the task.

58	Table	Maintenance -	Patient	Intake
30	Iable	mainteenanee	i acione	mican

Resource Selection

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Resources > <u>Add</u>

-	Tables Task Resources	Table Maintenance 🗴 Task List 🗴 Anger Management 🗴 🏫 🔍 📰 🕼 📝 🏭 🏚 🔐 🛩
Task: Categor	Anger Management y: Behavioral Health	
	💠 📙 Save Pending 🚫 Clear Pending 📀 Remove From Pending	
÷	Resource Selection	
	Type: All v Search:	
EE	Search Resources	Pending Resources
2	Location Dr. James Baxter	
	Location IMAGING SERVICES	
	Location MRI	
	Location Ultrasound Room 1	

Table Maintenance - Tasks/Procedures

Below is an explanation of each column:

- Search Resources: Displays a listing of all available resources that may be selected for the task. A search option is available at the top of the screen. To add a resource to the task, select the green plus sign to add it to the Pending Resources column.
- **Pending Resources:** A listing of selected resources from the Search Resources column will display here. To remove a task from this column, select the red minus sign.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save Pending: This will save all resources in the Pending Resources column.
- Clear Pending: This will remove anything in the Pending Resources column.

Precert

The Precert option on the navigation pane will need to be selected if wanting to enter precertification information during the scheduling process for certain financial classes.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > <u>Precert</u>

	TruBridge	Tables Prece	rt		Table Maintenance	Task List 🛛 🛛	Mammo Bi-lateral X	A	Q [•	Ľ	₩ ♠	JP 👻
Task: Categor	Mammo y: Imaginj	o Bi-late g Servic	ral es										
	🗘 Add	🙆 Re	move 3 Add Wildcard										
٠	Precerti	ficatio	n Financial Class List										
	Code	¢	Description										
	M**		Wildcard Entry										
٠													
۲													
_		_						_	_	_	_		

Precertification Financial Class List

Below is an explanation of each column:

- Code: Displays the financial class associated with the task
- Description: Displays the description of the financial class associated with the task

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Add: Selecting this option will allow financial classes to be added to the task for precertification. When selected, a list of financial classes will display. Select each financial class to add to the task and select **Save** from the action bar. This will allow precertification information to be added for the patient during scheduling.
- Remove: Selecting this option will remove a financial class from the task for precertification
- Add Wildcard: Selecting this option will allow financial classes to be added by wildcarding to the task for precertification. When selected, a wildcard may be populated in the Code field. A wildcard is distinguished by using an "*" in any of the three digits of the financial class code. Once populated, this will allow precertification for all financial classes that fall within the wildcard. Select **Save** from the action bar to save the wildcard.

Associated Task

The Associated Tasks option will allow associated tasks to be added when needing tasks to be scheduled simultaneously. When scheduling a patient, the system will read the tasks in the order in which they are arranged on this screen to apply the

associated settings. The tasks will then be scheduled for the resources attached to each associated task.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Associated Tasks

-	TruBridge	Tables Associated Tasks			Table Maintenance 🛛 👋	T	ask List × CT Chest & Li	abs ×	1	<u>।</u> २	V	# ♠	JP 👻
Task:	CT Chest	k Labs											
Catego	y:												
	🗘 Add	3 Remove 📝 Edit 💠 Change Order											
Ð	Associate	l Tasks											
8	Sequence	Description	¢	Schedule Sequence	Time	÷	Associated Tasks	÷					
8	1	CT Chest		Lag Time	N/A		0						
٥	2	CBC		Lag Time	1 Hours from First		0						
	3	CMP		Lag Time	1 Hours from Previous		0						
Ð													

Associated Tasks

Below is an explanation of each column:

• **Sequence:** The numeric order of the tasks to be scheduled.

- **Description:** The description of the associated task.
- Schedule Sequence: The sequence type of the associated task. This will display Lag Time, Same Time or Follows.
- Time: The schedule time of the associated task.
- Associated Tasks: The number of sub-tasks already set up with the task.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Add: Select this option to go to the Task List screen in order to select a task to be associated. Once a task has been selected, the Association Schedule screen will then display.
- Remove: Select this option to delete a task from the Associated Tasks screen.
- Edit: Select this option to make changes to the Association Schedule for a task.
- Change Order: Select this option to move a task up or down in sequence.

<u>Add</u>

When **Add** is selected from the Associated Tasks screen, the Task List will then display. Select a task and then select **Insert** from the action bar to add it as an associated task.

NOTE: The same task may be added multiple times as an Associated Task to the lead/parent task.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Associated Tasks > <u>Add</u>

-	uBridge Associated Tasks			ntenance $ imes$ Task List $ imes$	CT Chest & Labs 🛛 🛛	ନ ଦ 🗖	🕼 🕅 i	III 🌲 📴 👻
Task: Categor	CT Chest & Labs							
	🝁 🎒 Copy 🐱 Insert							
	ask List							
	pecialty Task Type: All ~							
	earch: Category: Description ~							
٠	Description	ф срт ф	Department 🔶	Category	♦ Duration ♦	Color \$	Active	Multi Res 💠 🔶
	3 HOUR GLUCOSE		58	Clinic	180	Plum	Y	N
0	Anger Management		58	Behavioral Health	60	Orange	γ	N
Ť	BLOOD PANEL		58	Clinic	15	Black	Y	N
	CBC		58	Laboratory	10	Lime	Y	N

Associated Tasks - Task List

The Association Schedule screen will then display to determine when the task will need to be scheduled.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Associated Tasks > Add > Select Task > <u>Insert</u>

-	TruBridge	e Associated Tasks	Table Maintenance × Task List >	CT Chest & Labs X	🛧 ዓ 🔲 🕼 🖉 🌐 🌲 💷 🗸
Task:	CT CH	hest & Labs			
	ery:	🛃 Update			
	Associ	iation Schedule			
	Associat Schedule	ted Task: CBC le Sequence: ON/A O From First Task O From Previous Task			
£	Schedule	le Type: O Lag Time O Same Time O Follows			
٥	Schedule	le Lag Time: Minutes From Task 🔹 Hours From Task 🔷 Days From Task			
٥					

Associated Tasks - Association Schedule

Below is an explanation of each field:

- Schedule Sequence: The following fields will determine at which point each associated task will be scheduled.
 - N/A: Select this option if the parent/lead task will be scheduled for the original time slot selected from the scheduling grid. If this option is selected for any subsequent associated tasks, the tasks will be moved to the Unscheduled status.
 - From First Task: Select this option if the task will need to be scheduled a certain amount of time after the first associated task listed in the Associated Task list. If this option is selected, the Schedule Lag Time fields will be available for selection.
 - From Previous Task: Select this option if the task will need to be scheduled a certain amount of time after the previous associated task listed in the Associated Task list. If this option is selected, the Schedule Lag Time fields will be available for selection.
- Schedule Type: The following fields will .
 - Lag Time: Select this option to enable the Schedule Lag Time options.
 - **Same Time:** Select this option to schedule the task at the exact same time as the lead task, first task or previous task. If this option is selected, the Schedule Lag Time fields will be disabled.
 - Follows: Select this option to schedule the task immediately following the lead task, first task or previous task, based on the order on the Associated Task screen. If this option is selected, the Schedule Lag Time fields will be disabled.

NOTE: The Same Time and Follows options will work depending on which Schedule Sequence is selected.

- Schedule Lag Time: The following fields will only be accessible if Lag Time has been selected as the Schedule Type.
 - Minutes/Hours/Days: Enter the number of minutes/hours/days in between each task's scheduled date/time.
 - **Minutes From Task:** Select this option and enter the number of minutes after the first or previous associated task before this particular associated task should be scheduled.
 - Hours From Task: Select this option and enter the number of hours after the first or previous associated task this particular associated task should be scheduled .
 - Days From Task: Select this option and enter in the number of days after the first or previous associated task this selected associated task should be scheduled .

62 Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

NOTE: When a new associated task is created, Minutes From Task will default to being selected for 5 minutes. If the Schedule Lag time is changed to Hours From Task, it will default to 1 hour. And if Days From Task is selected it will default to 1 day.

Use Case Scenario

The following is an example of how associated tasks may be used:

- 1. OR Procedure Series has been set up as the "shell" task and has **Associated Task** selected on the Task Table Edit screen. It then has the following three associated tasks set accordingly:
 - OR Procedure 1: Association Schedule has N/A selected.
 - OR Procedure 2: Association Schedule has From First Task selected, Lag Time selected and Days From Task is set to "1."
 - OR Procedure 3: Association Schedule has From Previous Task selected, Lag Time selected and Days From Task is set to "1."

When scheduling an OR Procedure Series for Monday at 9:00 a.m., TruBridge EHR will automatically schedule OR Procedure 1 for Monday at 9:00 a.m., then OR Procedure 2 for Tuesday at 9:00 a.m. (one day from the first task), and then OR Procedure 3 for Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. (one day from the previous task).

The above scheduling scenario would also apply to the following settings:

- OR Procedure 1: Association Schedule has N/A selected.
- OR Procedure 2: Association Schedule has From First Task selected, Lag Time selected and Hours From Task is set to "24."
- OR Procedure 3: Association Schedule has From First Task selected, Lag Time selected and Hours From Task is set to "48."
- 2. OR Procedure 1 has been set up as the "lead/parent" task. It then has the following associated tasks set accordingly:
 - OR Procedure 2: Association Schedule has N/A selected.
 - OR Procedure 3: Association Schedule has N/A selected.

When scheduling OR Procedure 1 for Monday at 9:00 a.m., the software will automatically schedule OR Procedure 1 for Monday at 9:00 a.m. OR Procedure 2 and OR Procedure 3 will be placed at the Unscheduled status. OR Procedure 2 and 3 will then need to be scheduled for the appropriate resource.

- 3. OR Procedure 1 has been set up as the lead/parent" task. It is being scheduling for the resource "OR 1." It then has the following associated tasks set accordingly:
 - OR Procedure 2: Association Schedule has From First Task selected, Lag Time selected and Days from Task set to "1." Resource "OR 1" has been assigned to this task.
 - OR Procedure 3: Associated Schedule has From Previous Task selected, Lag Time selected and Days From Task is set to "1." Resource "OR 2" has been assigned to this task.

When scheduling OR Procedure 1 for Monday at 9:00 a.m. in the "OR 1" resource, the software will automatically schedule OR Procedure 1 for that time at that resource. OR Procedure 2 will then be scheduled for Tuesday at 9:00 a.m in the "OR 1" resource. OR Procedure 3 will be placed at the Unscheduled status because resource "OR 1" has not been assigned to the task.

NOTE: If the scheduler does not have access to the resource assigned to a task on the schedule, the task will be placed at the Unscheduled status and will then need to be scheduled for the appropriate resource.

ltems

The Items option will allow items needing to be associated with a task to be added. This option is used along with Medical Necessity. Once an item is associated with a task, the item may then be ordered or charged once the task is set to complete.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > <u>Items</u>

r	TruBridge Items	Table Maintenance $ imes$	Task List × CBC ×	🟫 역 🔲 🕼 💕	III 🌲 🗾	JP 👻
Task: Catego	CBC y: Laboratory					
	💿 Add 📝 Edit					
0	Task Item List					
						Total: 1
83	Item Number 🔶 Description					\$
	351398 CBC WITH AUTOMATED DIFF					
•						

Task Item List

Below is an explanation of each column.

- Item Number: This is the Item Master number.
- Description: This is the description of the Item Master number

<u>Add</u>

When Add is selected, the Item Edit screen will then display. This will allow an item number to be added to the task. Select the Item Number magnifying glass to search for an item.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Items > <u>Add</u>

-	TruBridge	Tables Items	Table Maintenance 🛛 👋	Task List × CBC	×	角 ৭	(¥ == .	JP 👻
Task:	CBC								
Catego	ry: Laborato	ry							
	. 🔶 🛃 :	Save 🔇 Remove							
	Item Edit								
	Item Number	n 🔍							
	Item Descript	tion:							
		Order @ Complete							
	Type:	Charge @ Complete							
		N/A							
_									

A search option is available to search for an item by description or by item number. Once the item number and description have been located, double-click on the item.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Items > Add > <u>Item Number Look Up</u>

-	Tables TruBridge Items		Table Maintenance 🛛 🛛	Task List $ imes$ CBC $ imes$	n q 🔳 🕼 🗭 🏢	🌲 과 👻			
Task:	СВС								
Categor	y: Laboratory								
D	💠 🚯 New ಿ Re	fresh 📝 Item Master 🍞 Item Pricing Information 🦉 Order Entry Information 🦻 Pharmacy Information							
٠									
	Facility 1 : TruBridge Co	mmunity Hospital							
^	Search: CBC	Description ~							
	Search Containing Text: 👩 Include All Departments:								
۹	ltem Number 🛛 🔶	Description			¢	¢			
	4848	CBC							
٠	351396	CBC DIFF IF INDICATED							
	351400	CBC DIFF W/OUT AUTO							
	351398	CBC WITH AUTOMATED DIFF							
	351399	CBC WITH AUTOMATED DIFF II (BAB)							
	351400	CBC WITHOUT DIFF							

Item Lookup

After the item has been selected, the software will return to the Item Edit screen so any additional information may be added.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > Items > Add > Item Number Look Up > <u>Select Item</u>

	TruBridge	Tables Items		Task List 🛛 🔿	BC ×	r Q 🗖	💽 📝	Ⅲ ♠	JP 👻
Task:	CBC								
Catego	tegory: Laboratory								
	💠 🛃 Sa	Save 😮 Remove							
9	Item Edit								
	Item Number:	r: 🔍 351396							
	Item Description	tion: CBC DIFF IF INDICATED							
8		🔿 Order @ Complete							
	Туре:	🗿 Charge @ Complete							
- 9		○ N/A							
_									
	Item Edit								

Below is an explanation of each field:

- Item Number: The selected Item Master number
- Item Description: The selected Item Master number description
- **Type:** Select an option to determine when an item will be charged.
 - Order @ Complete: Select this option to charge the item once the order is complete.
 - Charge @ Complete: Select this option to charge the item once the charge is complete.
 - N/A: Select this option to charge the item as normal.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: Select this option to save the information.
- **Remove:** Select this option to remove the item from the task/procedure.

Instructions

The Instructions option may be selected to allow instructions created in the Instructions all be table to display for the scheduler and/or patient when scheduling the patient for a particular task. The instructions may be viewed on the Event screen or the Appointment Detail screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > <u>Instructions</u>

	TruBridge	Tables Instructions		
Task: Categor	Mammo y: Imaging	Bi-lateral Services		
	🚯 Add	PDF 🔇 Remove		
٠	Scheduli	ng Task Instruction List		
	Instructio	on Title	\$ Туре	\$
***	Mammog	ram - Patient	Patient Instruction	
٠	Mammog	ram - Scheduler	Scheduler Instruction	n
٠				

Task - Instructions List

Below is an explanation of each column:

- Instruction Title: This will display the name of the instruction.
- **Type:** This will display if the instruction is a patient or scheduler instruction.

Action Bar Options

- Add: Select this option to add instructions to the task. Once selected, a list of all instructions created in the Instructions table will display.
- **PDF:** Select this option if wanting to display the instructions in a PDF format. Selecting this option will also give the ability to print the instruction.
- **Remove:** Select this option to remove the instruction from the task.

66 Table Maintenance - Patient Inta

CPT

The CPT option will allow multiple CPT codes to be associated with a task. This will then allow schedulers to select the CPT code to be used when scheduling a patient for this task. Once a patient is scheduled, the CPT code will display on the Appointment Detail screen as well as the Printed Schedule report. It will also be an option in the Hover Maintenance.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Tasks/Procedures > Select Task/Procedure > Edit > <u>CPT</u>

-	TruBridge	Tables CPT										
Task: Catego	אני Mammo Bi-Lateral Legory: Imaging Services											
	😗 Ad	d 📀 Remove										
٥	CPT Lis	t										
	Descrip	otion	¢	Code	÷							
	COMPU	JTER MAMMOGRAM ADD-ON		76082								
٠	TOMOS	SYNTHESIS, MAMMO		G0279								
٠												
_												

Tasks - CPT List

Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** This will display the description of the CPT code.
- Code: This will display the CPT Code associated with the description.

Action Bar Options

- Add: Select this option to add CPT codes to the task. Once selected, a list of all CPT codes will display.
- **Remove:** Select this option to remove a CPT from the task.

23.2 Categories

The second table that will need to be set up is the categories table. This table will first set up the category and then will be linked to a task/procedure.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Categories

M TruBi	Takes Category List	Category List ×	🔒 ର 🔲 🕼	📝 III 🌲	JP 👻
8	🔹 💁 New 📝 Edit				
Cat	egory Codes				Total: 6
De	scription				\$ \$
Be	shavioral Health				
CL	inic				
In	naging Services				
La	boratory				
O	perating Room				
Pł	ysical				

Categories

Below is an explanation of each column:

• **Description:** The description of the category. A search option is available at the top of the screen.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- New: Selecting this option will allow a new category to be created.
- Edit: Selecting this option will allow the information on the category to be changed.

Category Code Edit



Below is an explanation of each field:

- **Code:** This code is assigned by the system when a new category is created. This code cannot be changed.
- **Description:** The description of the category.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: Select this option to save any changes if a new category code is created or if an existing category is changed.
- **Delete:** Select this option to delete a category from the table.

23.3 Instructions

The Instructions table may be setup if there are instructions for the scheduler or patient when a certain task is being scheduled. Scheduler instructions will be for information the scheduler needs to ask the patient, such as is the patient pregnant, before the task is scheduled. Patient instructions will be for information the scheduler needs to tell the patient in regards to the procedure being scheduled.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Instructions

New Edit PDF Scheduling Instruction List Search: Description Typ FASTING LAB Pati Mammogram -Patient Pati	ype 🔶 Last	t Changed 🔶
Scheduling Instruction List Search:	ype 💠 Last	t Changed 🔶
Description Typ FASTING LAB Pati Mammogram - Patient Pati	ype 🌲 Last	t Changed 🔶
FASTING LAB Pati Mammogram - Patient Pati		
Mammogram - Patient Pati	atient Instruction 08/2	28/2024 19:16 by Janet Pauls
	atient Instruction 10/0	08/2024 10:46 by Janet Pauls
Mammogram - Scheduler Sch	cheduler Instruction 08/0	06/2019 09:32 by Janet Pauls
NUC MED Stress Test - Patient Pati	atient Instruction 08/09	05/2019 08:51 by Janet Pauls
NUC MED Stress Test - Scheduler Sch	cheduler Instruction 08/0	06/2019 09:25 by Janet Pauls

Scheduling Instruction List

Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** The description of the instruction. A search option is available at the top of the screen.
- **Type:** The type of instruction. This will display either Patient Instruction or Scheduler Instruction to denote who the instruction is for.
- Last Changed: The last date and time the instruction was updated. It will also display the name of the person who last made the changes.

Action Bar options:

- New: Selecting this option will allow a new instruction to be created.
- Edit: This option will become enabled once an existing instruction is selected. Selecting this option will allow the information on the instruction to be changed.

• **PDF:** This option will become enabled once an existing instruction is selected. Selecting this option will display the instruction in a PDF format.

Scheduling Instruction Edit

Once an instruction has been selected, select the **Edit** option on the action bar to add or change the instruction.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Instructions > Select Instruction > Edit

-	TruBridge Instruction Edit		Table Maintenance × Instruction List	$<$ Instruction Edit \times	🔒 २ 🔳 🕼 🎽	₩ ♠	JP 👻
2	ቀ 🛛 📙 Update 🍞 Edit Ins	tructions 😸 PDF 🔇 Delete 👳 Financial Class					
	Scheduling Instruction E	lit					
	Title:	Mammogram - Patient					
	Type:	Patient Scheduler					
	Last Changed:	10/08/2024 10:46 by Janet Paulson					
_							

Scheduling Instruction Edit

Below is an explanation of each field:

- Title: Enter the title of the instruction.
- **Type:** Select Patient or Scheduler to designate the type of instruction.
 - **Patient:** Select this option if the instruction will be for information the scheduler needs to tell the patient in regards to the procedure being scheduled.
 - Scheduler: Select this option if the instruction will be for information the scheduler needs to ask the patient, such as is the patient pregnant, before the procedure is scheduled.
- Last Changed: The last date and time the instruction was updated. It will also display the name of the person who last made the changes.

Action Bar options:

- **Update:** Select this option to save any changes made to the instruction.
- Edit Instructions: Select this option to add or edit information for the instruction. See the Instruction Edit section below for more information on this option.
- **PDF:** Select this option to display the instruction in a PDF format.
- **Delete:** Select this option to delete the instruction.
- Financial Class: Select this option to add financial classes that this instruction will apply to, if needed. See the Financial Class Edit section below for more information on this option.

70	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake
----	------------------------------------

Instruction Edit

Once Edit Instructions has been selected, the Instruction Edit screen will display. The instructions may then be typed in the box provided.

NOTE: Formatting of the instructions (bold, underline, italic, etc.) will be enabled once the instructions have been typed and highlighted.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Instructions > Select Instruction > Edit > <u>Edit</u> <u>Instructions</u>

-	TruBrid	Takks Instruction Edit	Table Maintenance X	Instruction List ×	Instruction Edit \times	ন ৭		1	₩ .	JP 👻
P		🛃 Update								
	Instr	uction Edit								
	1. Do not wear any%20deodorants,%20antiperspirants, powders, lotions, creams or perfumes under your arms or on your breasts prior to mammogram.									
	2. Cut back on%20caffeire a few days before mammogram.									
	3. You may take over-the-counter medications such as Advil, Tylenol or aspirin prior to mammogram.									
	4. Wear a two-piece outfit (pants or skirt with a top) to allow you to keep your lower half covered during manimogram.									
	5. Please bring any previous mammograms you have had at other facilities.									

Instruction Edit

Financial Class Edit

Financial Classes may be assigned to an instruction so that is only applies to patients with that financial class. To add specific financial classes, select **Add** and a list of all available financial classes will display to select from. To wildcard financial classes, select **Add Wildcard** to input the wildcard.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Instructions > Select Instruction > Edit > Financial Class

• • • • •	в	iridge	Tables Instru	action Edit	Table Maintenance × Instruction List × Instruction Edit ×	🔒 ৎ 🗖 🕻	r 💅 🖩 🔺	
Instruction Financial Class List Code Pascription Wildcard Entry CHAMPUS-I/P CHAMPUS-0/P SBR CHAMPUS-RECURRING F 		💠 📀 Add 📀 Remove 😋 Add Wildcard						
Code Image: Pascription M** Wildcard Entry S CHAMPUS-JP SB CHAMPUS-O/P SBR CHAMPUS-RECURRING F	Ins	tructio	on Fin	ancial Class List				
M** Wildcard Entry S CHAMPUS-I/P SB CHAMPUS-O/P SBR CHAMPUS-CO/P	Co	ode	÷	Description				
S CHAMPUS-I/P SB CHAMPUS-0/P SBR CHAMPUS-RECURRING F	М	**		Wildcard Entry				
SB CHAMPUS-O/P SBR CHAMPUS-RECURRING F	s			CHAMPUS-I/P				
SBR CHAMPUS-RECURRING F	SE	В		CHAMPUS-O/P				
	SE	BR		CHAMPUS-RECURRING F				

Instruction Financial Class List

23.4 Reasons

The Reasons table is used to store various reasons why an appointment's status has been changed to No Show, Cancel or Reschedule in Updated Scheduling.

Select Web Client > Tables > <u>Patient Intake</u>

	Tables Reason List		Table Maintenance $ imes$ Reason List $ imes$	🛧 ዓ 🗖 🕼 🖉 🌐 🌲 💷 -	-
R	💠 📀 New 📝 Edit				
	Reason Codes Search:			Total	il: 6
	Description	Status			¢
	APPOINTMENT NO LONGER NEEDED	ACTIVE			
	CLINIC RESCHEDULE	ACTIVE			
	FAMILY EMERGENCY	ACTIVE			
	OTHER	ACTIVE			
	PERSONAL	ACTIVE			
	SCHEDULING CONFLICT	ACTIVE			



Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** The description of the reason. A search option is available at the top of the screen.
- Status: Displays if the reason is Active or Inactive.

Action Bar options:

- New: Selecting this option will allow a new reason to be created.
- Edit: Selecting this option will allow the information on an existing reason to be changed.

Reason Code Edit

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Select Reason > Edit

r	TruBridge Tables Reason List	Table Maintenance < Reason List 🗡 🏫 🔍 📰 🕼 📌 🔐 🛩
2	💠 🔛 Save	
	Reason Code Edit	
	Code: 4	
	Description: APPOINTMENT NO LONGER NEEDED	
	Inactive:	
_		

Reason Code Edit

Below is an explanation of each field:

• Code: This code is assigned by the system when a new reason is created. This code cannot be changed.

- **Description:** The description of the reason.
- Inactive: Select this option to make the reason inactive if it is no longer needed.

NOTE: Deletion of a reason is not permissible.

Action Bar options:

• Save: Select this option to save any changes if a new reason is created or if an existing reason is changed.

Chapter 24 Resources

24.1 Locations

The first table that should be set up is the locations table. All of the locations where tasks/procedures may be performed will need to be set up here. In this table, the hours of operation are set as well as when the location will need to be closed.

There are options at the top of the screen that will allow the list to be delimited by Active Only, Inactive Only or Both. A search option is also available.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations

	TruBridge Location List Screen	Table Maintenance 🛛 Location List Screen 🗡 🏠 🖨 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖉	-
Ð	💠 📀 New 📝 Edit 👔 Copy 📓 Report		
	Location List Active Only Inactive Only Both Search:	Tota	15
	Description	Active	Î
	Cat Scan	Y	
	Dr. David Coleman	Y	
_	Dr. Erica Smith	Y	Ц

Locations

Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** The description of the location. A search option is available at the top of the screen.
- Active: The column displays a Y if the location is actively being used, or an N if the location is marked as inactive.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- New: Selecting this option will allow a new location to be created.
- Edit: Selecting this option will allow the information for the location to be changed.
- Copy: Selecting this option will allow the location information to be copied to a new location.

NOTE: When creating a new location through the Copy option, give the location a name first and then save the new location. If further table maintenance is required, the new location should be accessed from the Location List.

• **Report:** Selecting this option enables information from the Locations table to be exported into a report. After selecting **Report**, the Report Writer Parameters screen will appear, allowing filters to be applied as needed. Once all are set, select **Run Report** to generate the file.

74	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake
74	

NOTE: This report is also available within the Report Dashboard and it titled "Scheduling Location Table Setup".

Location Edit

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Edit

TruBridge Lo	ocation Edit S	creen							× Location List Screen ×	Location Edit Screen $ imes$	🛧 ዓ 🔳 🕼 🗭 🏢 🌲	JP
💠 🛛 🛃 Sav	ve 🙆 Remo	ve 🔟 Alterr	nate Closures	🕈 Allow Access 🛛	🕈 Edit Blo	cks 🍈 M	essages <table-cell> 📝 Visi</table-cell>	t Info				
Location Ed	lit											
Description:		Dr.	James Baxter]						
Department:		19										
Address:		660	0 Wall St.]						
						j						
City:		Mol	bile		State:	AL	Zip: 36695					
Phone Number	:	251	6398200]								
Clinic Location:												
Login ID:			۹									
Prompt For Rea	ison:	i 🔽	No Show 🔽	Cancel 🔽 Re	schedule							
Availability		U										
, inclusion ()			Мах	Мах								
	Open	Close	Per Day	Simultaneous								
Monday:	0800	1700	25	4								
Tuesday:	0800	1700	25	4								
Wednesday:	0800	1700	25	4								
Thursday:	0800	1700	25	4								
Friday:	0800	1700	25	4								
Saturday:	0800	0800										
Sundaus	0800	0800	1									

Location Edit

Below is an explanation of each field:

- **Description:** The description of the location.
- **Department:** The department number associated with the location. This option controls the ability to use the Check-In option from the scheduling grid.

NOTE: If a department number is not loaded, the Check-In option will not display.

- Address/City/State/Zip: The address of the location.
- Phone Number: The phone number of the location.
- Clinic Location: Select this option if the location is a clinic location.
- Login ID: A provider's Login ID may be entered in this field to tie them to the location. This field is utilized with Patient Connect.
- **Prompt for Reason:** Select the following options to prompt for a Reason when an appointment status is changed to **No Show**, **Cancel** or **Reschedule** for this Location.

- **Inactive:** Select this option if the location will no longer be used. This will omit the location from look-ups during scheduling.
- Availability: This section will determine when the location will be available to schedule patients. This will reflect on the scheduling grid.
 - **Open:** The time of when the location will open for the day. The time must be entered in military time.
 - Close: The time of when the location will close for the day. The time must be entered in military time.
 - Max Per Day: The maximum amount of patients that may be scheduled for the day
 - Max Simultaneous: The maximum amount of patients that may be scheduled at the same time. If the number of patients are exceeded, a warning will appear as soon as the time slot is selected during scheduling.

If two schedulers are scheduling at the same time and scheduler A selects a time slot to schedule the last patient before Max Simultaneous has been reached then scheduler B selects the same time slot, a warning will appear. The warning will let scheduler B know that the selected time slot has been locked by scheduler A and that the Max Simultaneous has been reached.

NOTE: The Behavior Control "Override Appointments" may be set to allow for a user to override/overbook time slots that have been maxed out.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- **Save:** Select this option to save any changes if a new location is created or if changes are made to an existing location.
- Remove: Select this option to delete a location.
- Alternate Closures: This option is selected if needing to set up specific days/times the location will be closed. This will be reflected on the schedule.
- Allow Access: This option is selected if needing to allow specific users access to view a location on the scheduling grid, Print Schedule and Daily Schedule. See below for more information on how to add users on the Allow Access screen.

NOTE: In order for the Allow Access option to function as described, "Limit Resource Access" must be selected in the General Control table. See <u>General Control</u> for more information.

- Edit Blocks: Select this option to create a task block for this location. Creating a task block from this table will allow multiple resources to be added. See below for more information on how to create a task block.
- **Messages:** This option is used with the Patient Connect application.
- Visit Info: This option is selected if wanting to auto create visits during the scheduling process. In order to use the functionality, Auto Create Visits will also need to be selected in the <u>General</u> <u>Control</u> to table.

76	Table	Maintenance -	Patient	Intake
----	-------	---------------	---------	--------

Schedule Location Alternate Closures Edit

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > <u>Alternate Closures</u>

•	TruBridge Location Edit Sc	creen		Table Maintenance × Loo	ation List Screen × Location Edit Screen ×	🛧 ଦ 🔳 🕼 💅 🏢 🌲	JP 👻
2	💠 🙁 New 🍞 Edit						
	Schedule Location Alte	ernate Closures Edit					
	Frequency	Recurrence	Range Start	🗢 Range End	\$tart Time	💠 🛛 End Time	÷ 📫
	Daily	0	11/01/2014		12:00	13:00	
	None	0	12/01/2014	12/01/2014	08:30	10:00	
	None	0	12/05/2014	12/05/2014	08:45	10:45	
	None	0	12/02/2014	12/02/2014	13:15	14:45	
	None	0	12/03/2014	12/03/2014	10:00	11:00	
	None	0	12/02/2014	12/02/2014	10:15	11:15	

Location - Schedule Location Alternate Closure Edit

Below is an explanation of the columns:

- Frequency: This will show how frequently the closure will occur.
- **Recurrence:** This is the number of recurrences set up for the closure.
- Range Start: The date the closure will start
- Range End: The date the closure will end
- Start Time: The time the closure will start
- End Time: The time the closure will end

The following options are available on the action bar:

- New: Select this option to set up a new alternate closure.
- Edit: Select this option to make changes to an existing closure.

Recurrence Options

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Alternate Closures > <u>New</u> or Edit

L	TruBridge Location Edit Screen	Table Maintenance 🛛 Location List Screen 👋 Location Edit Screen 🗙 🏫 🔍 🗖 🕼 🎽 🛄 🌲 🛛 🖵 🔽
2	🝁 👹 Update 😮 Remove Recurrence	
	Recurrence Options	
	Recurrence pattern	
	🔿 One Time 👂 🔹 💿 Every 👔 day(s)	
	O Daily O Every weekday	
	O Weekly	
	O Monthly	
	○ Yearly	
	Range of recurrence	
	Start: Time: O No end date	
	O End after: occurrences	
	○ End by:	

Locations - Recurrence Options

Below is an explanation of each field:

- Recurrence Pattern: This section will determine how often the alternate closure will recur as well as what days it will recur.
 - **One Time:** Select this option if the closure will only happen one time. An example of when this would be used is if a doctor has vacation planned.
 - Daily: Select this option if the closure will occur on a daily basis. Once selected, choose how
 often the closure will recur. An example of when this would be used is if the location will close for
 lunch everyday.
 - Every _____ days (s): Select this option to populate the number of days the closure will recur.
 - o Every weekday: Select this option if the closure will recur Monday thru Friday.
 - Weekly: Select this option if the closure will occur on certain days of the week. Once selected, choose how of the closure will recur and on which days of the week. An example of when this would be used is if the location is closed on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays.
 - Recur every ____ week(s) on: Populate the number of weeks the closure will recur and then select the days of the week the closure will recur on.
 - Monthly: Select this option if the closure will occur on a certain day of the month. Once selected, choose how often the closure will recur. An example of when this would be used is if the location is closed the last Friday of every month.
 - **Day** __ **of every** __ **month(s):** Select this option and populate the date of the month and how many months the closure will recur.
 - The _____ of every ___ month(s): Select this option to designate if the closure will happen on the first, second, third or fourth day of a month, followed by how many months the closure will recur.
 - Yearly: Select this option if the closure will occur on a certain day every year. Once selected, choose what day of the year the closure will recur on. An example of when this would be used is if the location will be closed on holidays such as Thanksgiving or Christmas.
 - **Every** ____: Select this option to select the month and day of the closure.
 - **The** ____ **of** __: Select this option if the closure will happen the first, second, third, fourth or last day of a month.

- Range of Recurrence: After the Recurrence Pattern is set up, the Range of Recurrence will need to be set up to determine when to start the closure. If the recurrence is only for a certain amount of time, information may be entered to state when it will end.
 - Start: The date the closure will start
 - Time: The time the closure will start
 - No end date: Select this option if the closure will never end.
 - End After __ Occurrences: Select this option if the closure will stop after a certain number of occurrences. If selected enter in the number of occurrences.
 - End by: Time: Select this time if the closure will stop on a certain date and time.

NOTE: If a closure is being set up and has no end date, but will need to end at a certain time everyday, select **No end date** and then in the End by field, leave the date blank and enter in the end time only. An example of when this would be used is if the office closes everyday for lunch from 12:00-13:00.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: Select this option to save any changes made to the alternate closure.
- **Remove Recurrence:** Select this option to remove the alternate closure from the location.

Allow Access

78

The Allow Access option will allow users to be added who need access to view the location on the scheduling grid, Wait List, Print Schedule and Daily Schedule. If no users have been added to the Allow Access screen, the location will be viewable for all users. Once a user is added to the Allow Access screen, the location will only be visible to the listed user(s).

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > <u>Allow Access</u>

-	TruBridge Location Edit Screen	Table Maintenance 🛛 Location List Screen 🖂 Location Edit Screen 🔀 🏫 🔍 🖬 🕼 😰 📰 🌲 💵 👻
P	💠 🚱 Add 📀 Remove	
	Allow Access Search:	Total: 0
	Current Cogin ID 🔶 Name 🗘 Disabled	aate 🔶
_		

Allow Access

Below is an explanation of the columns:

- Login ID: The login ID of the user with allow access for the location.
- Name: The name associated with the login ID.
- **Disabled Date:** The date the login ID was disabled in System Administration. If this column is blank, the user is still active in TruBridge EHR.

Action Bar Options:

- Add: Select this option to add logins to the Allow Access screen.
- Remove: Select this option to remove logins from the Allow Access screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Allow Access > Add

-	TruBrid	ige Tables Location Edit Screen		Tab	ole Maintenance 🛛 🛛	Location List Screen X	Location Edit Screen \times	角 ৭	•	1	₩ ♠	JP 👻
R		🛃 Save Pending 📀 Move to Pendin	g 📀 Remove from Pending 🧪 Clear Pending									
	Empl Search	loyee Selection	ne v									
	Sear	rch Employees			Pending Employee	5						
	u	010000	Baxter James	•	u00884		Brewer Barry					
	u	00025	Bell Conrad									
	b	ew08219	BEN E WATZ									
	u	10003	Benefiel Tony									
_	b	b13102	BEVERLY BOWEN									

Employee Selection

The Add option for the Allow Access screen will allow employee's to be searched and added. Employees may be searched by Name or by Logname. Select the drop-down next to the Search field to select a search option for the employee(s). The following options on the action bar will become available as employees are selected.

- Save Pending: This option will become enabled once an employee has been added to the Pending Employees column. Select this option to save all employees in the Pending Employees column.
- Move to Pending: This option will become enabled once an employee is selected from the Search Employees column. Select this option to move the employee to the Pending Employees column.
- **Remove from Pending:** This option will become enabled once an employee is selected from the Pending Employees column. Select this option to remove the employee from the Pending Employees column.
- **Clear Pending:** This option will become enabled once an employee is in the Pending Employees column. Select this option to remove all employees displaying in the Pending Employees column.

80	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

Edit Blocks

The Edit Blocks option will first display any existing blocks that have been setup for the selected location within the selected date range. The blocks may be delimited by reason or date range at the top of the screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Edit Blocks

-	TruBridge	Tables Location Edit Screen		Table Maintenance 🛛 🕹	Location List Screen 🛛 🛛	Location Edit Screen \times	🔒 ৎ	•	* = *	JP 👻
2		Add 📝 Edit								
	Block List Location: I Reason:	st Dr. James Baxter All ~ Date Range:	2/5/2025 × 亩) ⁺ 2/19/2025 × 亩							\$
	Block	02/06/2025	Sports Physical							
	Block	02/11/2025	Sports Physical							
	Block	02/13/2025	Sports Physical							
	Block	02/18/2025	Sports Physical							

Block List

Below is an explanation of the columns:

- **Reason:** The reason for the block. This will display either Block, Other or Close.
- Date: The date of the block.
- **Description:** The description used for the block.

Action Bar Options:

- Add: Select this option to add a block to the Block List. See below for more information on how to add a task block.
- Edit: Select this option to edit an existing block.

Add Block

Adding a block from the locations table will allow additional resources to be added so that the block will display on all schedules for those resources. When creating a new block, the Add Resource option will become enabled once Update is selected from the action bar.

NOTE: Additional resources may only be added to a block from the Locations and Personnel tables.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Edit Blocks > Add

TruBridge Location Edit Screen Table Maintenance K Location List Screen	🗴 Location Edit Screen 🗴 🏫 🔍 🔲 💽 📝 🏭 🌲 💵
💠 🔛 Update 😮 Remove Block 😵 Add Resource 😮 Remove Resource	
Block Location: Dr. James Baxter	
Reason	Additional Resources
Open: Close: Block: Task: Other:	resource \$
Recurrence pattern O ne Time Daily Weekly Monthy Yearly	
Range of recurrence Start: 2/5/2025 X Time: 15:00 C End after: occurrences O End by: 2/5/2026 X Time: 16:00	

Block

Once on the Resource Selection screen, select the plus sign next to the resource that needs to be added from the Search Resources column to move it to the Pending Resources column. The Search Resources column may be delimited by using the Type and Search options at the top of the screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Edit Blocks > Add > <u>Add</u> <u>Resource</u>

TruBr	ridge Tables Location Edit Screen	Tat	ole Maintenance 🐇 Location List Screen 🐇 Location Edit Screen 🔀 🏫 🔍 💳 🕼 💅 🏢	🌲 🛛 🗜 👻		
P 4	🛛 📙 Save Pending 🚫 Clear Pending 📀 Remove From Pending					
Res Type	Kource Selection K All V Search:					
S	earch Resources		Pending Resources			
	Personnel DANIEL A MCCALISTER	- Dr.	Dr. Michael Peterson	Location		
	 Location Dr. James Baxter (clinic) 					
	Location IMAGING SERVICES					
	Location Exam Room 1					
	Location Meeting Room 1					
	Location Meeting Room 2					

Resource Selection

Table Maintenance - Pa	tient Intake
------------------------	--------------

82

The following options are available on the action bar.

- Save Pending: Select this option to save all resources in the Pending Resources column.
- Clear Pending: Select this option to remove all resources displaying in the Pending Resources column.
- **Remove from Pending:** Select this option to remove resources from the Pending Resources column.

Once all resources have been selected, select **Save Pending** on the action bar. TruBridge EHR will then return to the Block screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Edit Blocks > Add > Add Resource > <u>Save Pending</u>

Table Maintenance X Location List Screen Table Maintenance X Location List Screen	< Location Edit Screen 🗵 🏠 🔍 💼 🕼 😰 🏭 🌲 💷 👻
🍸 🗼 🚽 Update 🥝 Remove Block 📀 Add Resource 📀 Remove Resource	
Block Location: Dr. James Baxter	
Reason	Additional Resources
Open: Close: Block: Task: Q CPT: Other: Quarterly Board Meeting: Assigned Color: Inteck (Double click to change) Recurrence pattern One Time Day of every month(s) One Time Daily Of third V Wednesday of every month(s) One third V Wednesday Of every Meeting One third V Wednesday Of every Of	resource Dr. Michael Peterson
Start: 2/5/2025 × Time: 15:00	
No end date End after: Occurrences	
End by: 2/5/2025 × Time: 16:00	

Block

Select **Update** to save all selections.

If a resource needs to be removed, select the resource from the Additional Resources section and then select **Remove Resource** from the action bar.

If **Remove Block** is selected on the action bar, a message will display stating that the block will be removed from all current and future occurrences for all resources listed.

© 2025 TruBridge

Messages

The Messages option is used along with the Patient Connect application. This is where messages may be customized for a specific location where patient's are scheduled.

NOTE: Access will need to be given to the Message Configuration Behavior Control to have access to this screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Messages

r	Tables Location Edit Screen	Table Maintenance 💠 Location List Screen 💉 Location Edit Screen X 🔥 🏫 🔍 🧮 🕼 🌲 💵 💌
2	💠 📝 Edit - @ Mass Change	
	Dr. James Baxter	
	Description	♦ Active
	Affirmation	γ
	Reminder	γ
	Confirmation	γ
_		

Messages

Select which message to customize and then select Edit.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Messages > Edit

	Tables Location Edit	Screen	Table Maintenance ×	Location List Screen X	Location Edit Screen \times	ନ ଦ	•	1 2 -	# ♠	JP 👻
P	ቀ 📙 Save									
	Appointment Messages									
	Dr. James Baxter									
	Message Type:	Confirmation ~								
	Inactive:									
	Message content:	HI GFHAME Place confirm your appointment with @FAC on @DATFUNE Click link to confirm, cancel, or reschedule.								
	Last updated by:	cpsi								
	Last updated Date/Time:	2022-04-04 13:26:42								

Messages - Edit

The Appointment Message for the selected location will display. The message may only be activated/deactivated and the message content customized.

84	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake
84	Table Maintenance - Patient Intake

<u>Visit Info</u>

The Visit Info option will determine if a visit needs to be created for the location during the scheduling process. To allow a visit to be created, select the **Create Visit** field.

Additional fields will display once **Create Visit** is selected. Define the Stay Type to be used when creating the visit. The Subtype, Service Code and Physician are optional fields that may be defined as well. Select **Save** once all fields have been addressed.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Locations > Select Location > Visit Info

	TruBridge Tables Location I	idit Screen	Table Maintenance \times Location List Screen \times	Location Edit Screen ×	🛧 역 🔳 🕼 🖉 🏢 🌲 💷 🗸
2	🗢 🛃 Save				
	Visit Info				
	Resource: Dr. Jame	s Baxter			
	Create Visit:				
	Stay Type:	O/P v			
	Subtype:	Q			
	Service Code:				
	Physician:				

Visit Info

24.2 Personnel

All staff members who may perform tasks/procedures will need to be set up in the personnel table. This table is where the available hours are set as well as when the personnel will not be available.

There are options at the top of the screen that will allow the list to be delimited by Active Only, Inactive Only or Both. A search option is also available.

Personnel List

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel

-	TruBridge Personnel List Screen		Table Maintenance	Personnel List Screen X	🗖 🕼 🗭 III 🌲 🛛 🖳 👻
P	💠 📀 New 📝 Edit 👔 Copy				
	Personnel List O Active Only Inactive Only Both Search:				Total: 1
	Login ID		\$	Active	\$
	u003803	DANIEL A MCCALISTER		Y	
_					

Personnel

Below is an explanation of each column:

- Login ID: The personnel's login id used to login to TruBridge EHR
- Name: This column displays the name of the employee who is affiliated with the logname to the left.

• Active: The column displays a Y if the person is actively being used, or an N if the person is marked as inactive.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- New: Selecting this option will allow a new personnel to be created.
- Edit: Selecting this option will allow the information for the personnel to be changed.
- Copy: Selecting this option will allow personnel information to be copied to a new personnel record.

NOTE: When creating a new personnel record through the Copy option, give the new entry a name first and then save the new entry. If further table maintenance is required, the new personnel record should be accessed from the Personnel List.

• **Report:** Selecting this option enables information from the Personnel table to be exported into a report. After selecting **Report**, the Report Writer Parameters screen will appear, allowing filters to be applied as needed. Once all are set, select **Run Report** to generate the file.

NOTE: This report is also available within the Report Dashboard and it titled "Scheduling Personnel Table Setup".

Personnel Edit

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit

TruBridge	Tables Personn	el Edit Scree	en						Tabl	le Maintenance 🛛 🛛	Personnel List Screen 🛛 🛛	Personnel Edit Screen	×	🔒 ৭ 🛛	• • •	 JP 👻
y 🔶 🖬	Save 🙁	Remove	Alterna	ate Closures	Allow Acces	s 🍞 Edit Blocks	Messages	s 🍞 Visit Info								
Personne	l Edit															
Login ID:		u003803	۹	003803												
Name:		DANIEL A N	NCCALISTE	ER												
Clinic Locati	on:	0														
Prompt For	Reason:	No Show	w 🗆	Cancel	Reschedule											
Inactive:																
				Max	Max											
	Open	Close	e	Per Day	Simultaneou	s										
Monday:	0800	170	00	5	1											
Tuesday:	0800	170	00	5	1											
Wednesday:	0800	170	00	5	1											
Thursday:	0800	170	00	5	1											
Friday:	0800	170	00	5	1											
Saturday:																
Sunday:																

Personnel Edit

Below is an explanation of each field:

• Login ID: The login id associated with the personnel. A search option is available if the login id is not known.

- **Name:** The personnel name that is attached to the login id. Once a login id is entered, the name will automatically be populated.
- Clinic Location: Select this option if personnel will be in a clinic location.
- **Prompt for Reason:** Select the following options to prompt for a Reason when an appointment status is changed to **No Show**, **Cancel** or **Reschedule** for this Personnel.
- **Inactive:** Select this option if the person will no longer be used. This will omit the person from any look-ups during scheduling.
- Availability: This section will determine when the personnel will be available to schedule patients. This will reflect on the scheduling grid.
 - **Open:** The time of when the personnel will be available for the day. The time must be entered in military time.
 - Close: The time of when the personnel will no longer be available for the day. The time must be entered in military time.
 - Max Per Day: The maximum amount of patients that may be scheduled for the day.
 - Max Simultaneous: The maximum amount of patients that may be scheduled at the same time. If the number of patients are exceeded, a warning will appear as soon as the time slot is selected during scheduling.

If two schedulers are scheduling at the same time and scheduler A selects a time slot to schedule the last patient before Max Simultaneous has been reached, then scheduler B selects the same time slot, a warning will appear. The warning will let scheduler B know that the selected time slot has been locked by scheduler A and that the Max Simultaneous has been reached.

NOTE: The Behavior Control "Override Appointments" may be set to allow for a user to override/overbook time slots that have been maxed out.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- **Save:** Select this option to save any changes if a new personnel is created or if changes are made to an existing personnel.
- **Remove:** Select this option to delete a personnel.
- Alternate Closures: This option is selected if needing to set up specific days/times the personnel will be unavailable. This will be reflected on the schedule.
- Allow Access: This option is selected if needing to allow specific users access to view personnel on the scheduling grid, Print Schedule and Daily Schedule. See below for more information on how to add users on the Allow Access screen.

NOTE: In order for the Allow Access option to function as described, "Limit Resource Access" must be selected in the General Control table. See <u>General Control</u> for more information.

• Edit Blocks: Select this option to create a task block for this person. Creating a task block from this table will allow multiple resources to be added. See below for more information on how to create a task block.

- Messages: This option is used with the Patient Connect application.
- Visit Info: This option is selected if wanting to auto create visits during the scheduling process. In order to use the functionality, Auto Create Visits will also need to be selected in the <u>General</u> <u>Control</u> to table.

Schedule Personnel Alternate Closures

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit > <u>Alternate Closures</u>

Personnel Edit Screen					Personnel Edit Screen \times	f 0	. 🗖 🛛	r 💅 🗉	: 🌲	JP 👻
😑 New 📝 Edit										
ule Personnel Alternate Closu	res									
ncy \$	Recurrence	Range Start	Range End	\$	Start Time	φ.	End Time			\$
ly .	1	09/01/2018			08:30		09:00			
ly .	3	10/17/2018			08:00		10:00			
·	1	09/02/2024	09/02/2024		10:45		11:15			
	Presonnel Alternate Closu Coosasa Prey Presonnel Alternate Closu Presonnel Alternate Presonnel Altern	New 22 Edit le Personnel Alternate Closures ncy Recurrence / 1 / 3 1 1	Rew Personnel Alternate Closures Rey Recurrence Range Start / 1 09/01/2018 / 3 10/17/2018 1 09/02/2024	Rev Rev <th>Rev Recurrence Range Start Range End / 1 09/01/2018 / 3 10/11/2018 1 09/02/2024 09/02/2024</th> <th>New New <th< th=""><th>New Recurrence Range Start Personnet Lott Screent × New kgy Recurrence Range Start Range End Start Time Start Start <th>New New <th< th=""><th>New New <th< th=""><th>Resonant Coll Collection Resonant Coll Collection Resonan</th></th<></th></th<></th></th></th<></th>	Rev Recurrence Range Start Range End / 1 09/01/2018 / 3 10/11/2018 1 09/02/2024 09/02/2024	New New <th< th=""><th>New Recurrence Range Start Personnet Lott Screent × New kgy Recurrence Range Start Range End Start Time Start Start <th>New New <th< th=""><th>New New <th< th=""><th>Resonant Coll Collection Resonant Coll Collection Resonan</th></th<></th></th<></th></th></th<>	New Recurrence Range Start Personnet Lott Screent × New kgy Recurrence Range Start Range End Start Time Start Start <th>New New <th< th=""><th>New New <th< th=""><th>Resonant Coll Collection Resonant Coll Collection Resonan</th></th<></th></th<></th>	New New <th< th=""><th>New New <th< th=""><th>Resonant Coll Collection Resonant Coll Collection Resonan</th></th<></th></th<>	New New <th< th=""><th>Resonant Coll Collection Resonant Coll Collection Resonan</th></th<>	Resonant Coll Collection Resonan

Personnel - Schedule Personnel Alternate Closure

Below is an explanation of the columns:

- Frequency: This will show how frequently the closure will occur.
- Recurrence: Number of recurrences set up for the closure
- Range Start: The date the closure will start
- Range End: The date the closure will end
- Start Time: The time the closure will start
- End Time: The time the closure will end

The following options are available on the action bar:

- New: Select this option to set up a new alternate closure.
- Edit: Select this option to make changes to an existing closure.

Recurrence Options

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit > Alternate Closures > <u>New or Edit</u>

TruBridge Tables Personnel Edit Screen		Table Maintenance × Personnel List Screen >	< Personnel Edit Screen ×	🛧 ዓ 🗖 🕼 🗭 🏢 🌲 🔐 👻
🍞 < 🚽 Update 🔇 Remove Recurrence				
Recurrence Options				
Recurrence pattern				
🔿 One Time 🛛 🗟	Every 0 day(s)			
	Every weekday			
O Monthly				
O Yearly				
Range of recurrence				
Start: Time: No end di End after: End by:	ccurrences			

Personnel - Recurrence Options

Below is an explanation of each field:

- **Recurrence Pattern:** This section will determine how often the alternate closure will recur as well as what days it will recur.
 - **One Time:** Select this option if the closure will only happen one time. An example of when this would be used is if a doctor has vacation planned.
 - Daily: Select this option if the closure will occur on a daily basis. Once selected, choose how
 often the closure will recur. An example of when this would be used is if the location will close for
 lunch everyday.
 - Every _____ days (s): Select this option to populate the number of days the closure will recur.
 - Every weekday: Select this option if the closure will recur Monday thru Friday.
 - Weekly: Select this option if the closure will occur on certain days of the week. Once selected, choose when the closure will recur and on which days of the week. An example of when this would be used is if the location is closed on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays.
 - **Recur every** <u>week(s)</u> on: Populate the number of weeks the closure will recur and then select the days of the week the closure will recur on.
 - **Monthly:** Select this option if the closure will occur on a certain day of the month. Once selected, choose how often the closure will recur. An example of when this would be used is if the location is closed the last Friday of every month.
 - **Day** __ **of every** __ **month(s):** Select this option and populate the date of the month and how many months the closure will recur.
 - The _____ of every ___ month(s): Select this option to designate if the closure will happen on the first, second, third or fourth day of a month, followed by how many months the closure will recur.
 - Yearly: Select this option if the closure will occur on a certain day every year. Once selected, choose what day of the year the closure will recur on. An example of when this would be used is if the location will be closed on holidays such as Thanksgiving or Christmas.
 - **Every** ____: Select this option to select the month and day of the closure.
 - **The** ____ **of** ___: Select this option if the closure will happen the first, second, third, fourth or last day of a month.

- Range of Recurrence: After the Recurrence Pattern is set up, the Range of Recurrence will need to be set up to determine when to start the closure. If the recurrence is only for a certain amount of time, information may be entered to state when it will end.
 - Start: The date the closure will start
 - Time: The time the closure will start
 - No end date: Select this option if the closure will never end.
 - End After __ Occurrences: Select this option if the closure will stop after a certain number of occurrences. If selected enter in the number of occurrences.
 - End by: Time: Select this time if the closure will stop on a certain date and time.

NOTE: If a closure is being set up and has no end date, but will need to end at a certain time everyday, select **No end date** and then in the End by field, leave the date blank and enter in the end time only.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: Select this option to save any changes made to the alternate closure.
- Remove Recurrence: Select this option to remove the alternate closure from the location.

Allow Access

The Allow Access option will allow users to be added who need access to view the personnel on the scheduling grid, Print Schedule and Daily Schedule. If no users have been added to the Allow Access screen, the personnel will be viewable for all users. Once a user is added to the Allow Access screen, the personnel will only be visible to the listed user(s).

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > <u>Allow Access</u>

-	TruBridge Tables Location Edit Screen	Table Maintenance 兴 Location List Screen 兴 Location Edit Screen 兴 🏫 🔍 🧮 🕼 🖉 📰 🌲 🛛 🖵 👻
P	💠 🚱 Add 📀 Remove	
	Allow Access Search:	Total: 0
	Login ID ϕ Name ϕ Disabled D	ate 🔶
_		

Allow Access

Below is an explanation of the columns:

- Login ID: The login ID of the user with allow access for the location.
- Name: The name associated with the login ID.
- **Disabled Date:** The date the login ID was disabled in System Administration. If this column is blank, the user is still active in TruBridge EHR.

Action Bar Options:

- Add: Select this option to add logins to the Allow Access screen.
- Remove: Select this option to remove logins from the Allow Access screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Allow Access > Add

-	Tru	Bridge Tables Location Edit	Screen	Та	ble Ma	aintenance × Loc	ation List Screen $ imes$	Location Edit Screen \times	^ (२ 🗖 ।	r 7	₩.	JP 👻
P		ቀ 🛛 🛃 Save Pending	🧭 Move to Pending 🔞 Remove from Pending 🥜 Clear Pending										
	Er Se	mployee Selection	Name ~										
		Search Employees			Pe	ending Employees							
		u010000	Baxter James	•		u00884		Brewer Barry					
		u00025	Bell Conrad										
		bew08219	BEN E WATZ										
		u10003	Benefiel Tony										
		bb13102	BEVERLY BOWEN										

Employee Selection

The Add option for the Allow Access screen will allow employees to be searched and added. Employees may be searched by Name or by Logname. Select the drop-down next to the Search field to select a search option for the employee(s). The following options on the action bar will become available as employees are selected.

- Save Pending: This option will become enabled once an employee has been added to the Pending Employees column. Select this option to save all employees in the Pending Employees column.
- Move to Pending: This option will become enabled once an employee is selected from the Search Employees column. Select this option to move the employee to the Pending Employees column.
- **Remove from Pending:** This option will become enabled once an employee is selected from the Pending Employees column. Select this option to remove the employee from the Pending Employees column.
- **Clear Pending:** This option will become enabled once an employee is in the Pending Employees column. Select this option to remove all employees displaying in the Pending Employees column.

Edit Blocks

The Edit Blocks option will first display any existing blocks that have been setup for the selected location within the selected date range. The blocks may be delimited by reason or date range at the top of the screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit Blocks

-	TruBridge Tables Personnel Edit Screen	Table Maintenance \times Personnel List Screen \times	Personnel Edit Screen $ imes$	🛧 ዓ 🔳 🕼 💕	III 🌲 🛛 🖵 👻
P	💠 📀 Add 📝 Edit				
	Block List Location: DANELA MCCALISTER Reason: All V Date Range: 2/5/2025 X III				
_	Reason 🔷 Date 🗢 Description				¢



Below is an explanation of the columns:

- Reason: The reason for the block. This will display either Block, Other or Close.
- Date: The date of the block.
- **Description:** The description used for the block.

Action Bar Options:

- Add: Select this option to add a block to the Block List. See below for more information on how to add a task block.
- Edit: Select this option to edit an existing block.

92 Table Maintenance - Patient Intak

Add Block

Adding a block from the personnel table will allow additional resources to be added so that the block will display on all schedules for those resources. When creating a new block, the Add Resource option will become enabled once Update is selected from the action bar.

NOTE: Additional resources may only be added to a block from the Locations and Personnel tables.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit Blocks > Add

TruBridge Tables Personnel Edit Screen	Table Maintenance 🛛 Personnel List Screen 🖒 🌓 Personnel Edit Screen 🗡 🏫 🔍 🧰 🕼 🖉 📰 🌲 🔐 🛩
😢 💠 🛃 Update 🔇 Remove Block 🚯 Add Resource 🔇 Remove Resource	
Block Location: DANIEL A MCCALISTER	
Reason	Additional Resources
Open: Close: Block: Task: Quarterly Board Meeting Assigned Color:	□ resource ♦
Start: 2/5/2025 X Ime: 15:30 No end date End after: occurrences End by: 2/5/2026 X Ime: 16:30	

Block

Once on the Resource Selection screen, select the plus sign next to the resource that needs to be added from the Search Resources column to move it to the Pending Resources column. The Search Resources column may be delimited by using the Type and Search options at the top of the screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit Blocks > Add > <u>Add</u> <u>Resource</u>

-	ruBridge Tables Personnel Edit Screen	Table	e Maintenance 🔻 Personnel List Screen 🗴 🧧 🕼 😰 🏭 🌲 🚽	P -
P	🔹 📙 Save Pending 🔇 Clear Pending 📀 Remove From Pending			
	Resource Selection lype: All v Search:			
	Search Resources		Pending Resources	
	Location Dr. James Baxter	*	Dr. David Coleman Loca	ition
	Location Dr. Michael Peterson			
	Location Dr. James Baxter (clinic)			
	Location IMAGING SERVICES			
_	Location Exam Room 1			

Resource Selection

The following options are available on the action bar.

- Save Pending: Select this option to save all resources in the Pending Resources column.
- Clear Pending: Select this option to remove all resources displaying in the Pending Resources column.
- **Remove from Pending:** Select this option to remove resources from the Pending Resources column.

Once all resources have been selected, select **Save Pending** on the action bar. TruBridge EHR will then return to the Block screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Edit Blocks > Add > Add Resource > <u>Save Pending</u>

🙀 Update 📀 Remove Block 💿 Add Resource 📀 Remove Resource	
Block	
Location: DANIEL A MCCALISTER	
REASON	ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
Close:	Dr. David Coleman
Block: Task:	
Other: Quarterly Board Meeting	
Assigned Color: Black (Double click to change)	
RECURRENCE PATTERN	
One Time Day of every month(s) Daily Figure	
Wednesday Wednesday	
Monthly Searty	
(really	
RANGE OF RECURRENCE	
Start: 10/17/2018 Time: 08:00 No end date	
End after: occurrences	
Child by. Information 10,00	

Block

Select **Update** to save all selections.

If a resource needs to be removed, select the resource from the Additional Resources section and then select **Remove Resource** from the action bar.

If **Remove Block** is selected on the action bar, a message will display stating that the block will be removed from all current and future occurrences for all resources listed.

94 Table Maintenance - Patient Intak

<u>Messages</u>

The Messages option is used along with the Patient Connect application. This is where messages may be customized for a specific location where patient's are scheduled.

NOTE: Access will need to be given to the Message Configuration Behavior Control to have access to this screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Messages

•	Tables Location Edit Screen	Table Maintenance 💠 Location List Screen 💉 Location Edit Screen 🗴 🏫 🔍 📑 💽 😰 🏭 🌲 💵 💌
R	💠 📝 Edit - 🔘 Mass Change	
	Dr. James Baxter	
	Description	♦ Active
	Affirmation	γ
	Reminder	γ
	Confirmation	γ
_		

Messages

Select which message to customize and then select Edit.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Messages > Edit

-	ruBridge Tables Location Edit	Table Maintenanc	m e~ imes~Location~List~Screen~ imes	Location Edit Screen \times	🕈 ৭	🛛 III 🌢	JP 👻
P	ቀ 📙 Save						
	Appointment Messages						
	Dr. James Baxter						
	Message Type:	Confirmation 🖌					
	Inactive:						
	Message content:	HI @FNAME.Please confirm your appointment with @FAC on @DATETME.C.Click link to confirm, cancel, or reschedule.					
	Last updated by:	psi					
_	Last updated Date/Time:	2022-04-04 13:26:42				 	

Messages - Edit

The Appointment Message for the selected location will display. The message may only be activated/deactivated and the message content customized.

Visit Info

The Visit Info option will determine if a visit needs to be created for the location during the scheduling process. To allow a visit to be created, select the **Create Visit** field.

Additional fields will display once **Create Visit** is selected. Define the Stay Type to be used when creating the visit. The Subtype, Service Code and Physician are optional fields that may be defined as well. Select **Save** once all fields have been addressed.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Personnel > Select Personnel > Visit Info

-	TruBridge Tables Location E	Jit Screen	Table Maintenance $ imes$ Location List Screen $ imes$	Location Edit Screen \times	🛧 익 🚍 🕼 🖉 🏢 🌲 📲	JP 👻
2	🗢 🛃 Save					
	Visit Info					
	Resource: Dr. James	Baxter				
	Create Visit:					
	Stay Type:	O/P v				
	Subtype:	Q				
	Service Code:	CL Q CLINIC				
	Physician:	11587 Q. JAMES BAXTER				

Visit Info

Chapter 25 Schedules

The Schedules table is where schedules will be housed. The schedule will have resources attached to it which will then allow patients to be scheduled under those resources. To begin creating schedules, users will need the Behavior Control "Create/Edit My Schedules" set to allow in System Administration. Only the user that originally creates a schedule will be able to make changes to the schedule. If a user is needing to make changes to a schedule created by another user, they will need the Behavior Control "Edit Other User's Schedules" set to allow in System Administration. Schedules may also be set up within the Appointment Scheduler through Schedule Options .

NOTE: If the signed-on user has access to Table Maintenance via behavior controls in System Administration, they will be able to view all schedules regardless if the schedules are public or have been created by another user.

-	TruBridge	Tables Schedules List	Schedules List \times	🔒 ৭	•	1		JP 👻
P		🖞 Edit 🗿 New 🐖 Insert						
	Schedu Search:	les						
	\Box	Description	÷	Public Y/N	¢	L	ast Change	\$
		Imaging Services		Y		jk	(p1619 08/26/	2019 10:12
		Smith Clinic Schedule		N		\$5	sm2566 08/26	5/2019 10
		Peterson Schedule		Y		jk	(p1619 08/26/	2019 10:12
		TruBridge Community Health System		Υ		jk	(p1619 07/31/	2024 10:16
		Behavioral Health		Y		jk	(p1619 08/26/	2019 10:12
		TruBridge Community Health System Sched		N		jk	(p1619 07/31/	2024 10:17
		TruBridge Community Clinic - Jane		N		jk	(p1619 07/31/	2024 10:17
		Family Medicine		Υ		jk	(p1619 08/27/	2024 02:40
		TruBridge Community Clinic		Y		jk	(p1619 08/29/	2024 15:32

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Schedules

Table Maintenance - Schedules

Below is an explanation of each column:

- Description: The description of the schedule
- Public Y/N: This shows is the schedule is public for others to use. Will show Yes or No.
- Last Change: Displays the date and time as well as the login of the user who last edited the schedule

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Edit: Selecting this option will allow the information on the schedule to be changed.
- New: Selecting this option will allow a new schedule to be created.
- **Remove:** Selecting this option will remove a schedule from the table.

Schedule Edit - New

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Schedules > Select Schedule > <u>New</u>

	TruBridge Schedules List	Table Maintenance 🛛 🛛	Schedules List $ imes$	角 ৭ 🕯	• •	' ⊞ ♠	JP 👻
2	🗢 📙 Save 😸 Save As 🔇 Add Resource 🔇 Remove Resource 🔍 Preview 🔇 Delete 📝 Hover Maintenance						
	Schedule Edit						
	Description:						
	Default Grid Increments: 15 v						
	Use Military Time:						
	Description				Туре		\$
_							

Table Maintenance - Schedules

Below is an explanation of each field:

- Description: The name of the schedule
- Default Grid Increments: The number of minute increments to display on the scheduling grid
- Military Time: Selecting this option will display the scheduling grid times in Military Time.
- **Public:** Selecting this option will make the schedule available to all users. The schedule may then be copied to another schedule.

Below is an explanation of each column:

- **Description:** The description of the resource attached to the selected schedule.
- Type: The type of resource (Location or Personnel) attached to the selected schedule.

Schedule Edit - Edit

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Schedules > Select Schedule > Edit

1dge Schedules List		Schedules List \times	🕈 ৎ 🗖	R	₩ ≜	JP 👻
🔹 🕌 Save 🖶 Save As 🔇 Add Resource 🔇 Remove Resource 🔍 Preview 🔇 Delete 📝 Hover Maintenance 💠 Change Order						
edule Edit						
rription: TruBridge Community Clinic						
ult Grid Increments: 15 ~						
Military Time:						
ic 🧹						
escription			\$	Туре		\$
R BROOKE BISCHOFF				Location		
R DAVID MITCHEM				Location		
	Image: Solution State	Remove Resource Remove Resource Remove Resource Remove Resource	Reducte List Table Maintenance Schedules List X Image: Same As Same As Add Resource Remove Resource Preview Delete Hover Maintenance Change Order Image: Same As X Add Resource Remove Resource Image: TruBridge Community Clinic aut Grid Increments: 5 - Image: Same As Image: Same As Image: Same As X Image: Same As Image: S	Reduites List Table Maintenance Sheddles List Sheddles List <th>RobedUles List XobedUles List Image: Some due Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image</th> <th>Robedules List Schedules List Image: Stred List Image</th>	RobedUles List XobedUles List Image: Some due Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image: Soute Image	Robedules List Schedules List Image: Stred List Image

Table Maintenance - Schedules

98

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save: This option will save the setup entered on the screen.
- Save As: This option allows the schedule to be saved under a new schedule description. Once selected, make the necessary changes and select Save.
- Add Resource: Selecting this option will go to the Resource Selection screen to add resources to the schedule.
- **Remove Resource:** Selecting this option will remove a selected resource from the schedule.
- **Preview:** Selecting this option will show how the schedule will be displayed in the Day View on the scheduling grid. This is a view-only screen that may be used to determine if the schedule is set up appropriately.
- **Delete:** Selecting this option will delete the schedule from the system. If selected, a prompt will display stating, "This schedule may be used by other employees. Do you wish to proceed?". Selecting Yes, will delete the schedule. Selecting No, will return back the Schedules screen.

NOTE: If a schedule needs to be deleted, and is being utilized by one or more user logins, users will need the Behavior Control "Edit Other User's Schedules" set to Allow in Identity Management. This will allow the schedule to be deleted regardless if others are using the schedule. If users do not have the "Edit Other User's Schedules" Behavior Control, they will only be able to delete schedules they created.

NOTE: The Delete option will be inaccessible if the schedule has been marked as Public by another user.

- Hover Maintenance: Selecting this option will allow each schedule's information that displays in the patient pop-up box on the scheduling grid to be customized. Up to seven lines of information may be selected. If nothing is selected in this option, the pop-up will display the default five lines (Date of Birth, Account Number, Patient Phone Number, Precertification, Task).
- Change Order: Selecting this option will allow the order of the locations on the schedule to be rearranged. The order in which the locations appear on the Schedule Edit screen is the order that will be displayed on the scheduling grid.

Resource Selection

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Schedules > Select Schedule > Edit > Add Resource

TruBridge Tables Schedules List	Table Maintenance 🔀 Schedules List 🗴 🏫 🔍 🗖 🕼 🎽 💷 👻
💓 🔺 📕 Save Pending 🔇 Clear Pending 🔇 Remove From Pending	
Resource Selection Type: All ✓ Search:	
Search Resources	Pending Resources
Location Dr. James Baxter	
Location IMAGING SERVICES	
Location MRI	
Location Ultrasound Room 1	
Location Dr. Michael Peterson	

Table Maintenance - Schedules

Below is an explanation of each column:

- Search Resources: A listing of all available resources that may be selected for the schedule. A search option is available at the top of the screen. To add a resource to the schedule, select the green plus sign to add it to the Pending Resources column.
- **Pending Resources:** A listing of selected resources from the Search Resources column will display here. To remove a resource from this column, select the red minus sign.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Save Pending: This will save all resources in the Pending Resources column and bring the user back to the Schedule Edit Screen.
- Clear Pending: This will remove anything in the Pending Resources column.

Chapter 26 General Control

The Scheduling General Control table allows for certain settings to be made to the Patient Scheduling application.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > General Control



Scheduling General Control Table

Below is an explanation of each field:

- Limit Resource Access: Select this option to limit which users have access to view certain resources (i.e. Locations and Personnel) in Updated Scheduling. Defining which users have access to view certain resources will be done through the Allow Access option in the Locations and Personnel at tables.
- Hover: List Patient Names in Group Tasks: Select this option to display the names of all patients scheduled for a group task when hovering over the group block on the scheduling grid. If this option is not selected, only the number of patients scheduled for the group task will display when hovering over the group block.
- Auto Create Visit: Select this option to auto create visits once a patient has been scheduled for an appointment. This field will look to the <u>Locations</u> and <u>Personnel</u> tables when a patient is being scheduled to determine the visit information to be used.

NOTE: For facilities wanting to use this functionality, it is recommended to first complete all the setup on each resource with the visit information. Once that is completed, select **Auto Create Visit** to enable this functionality.

- Days Before Appointment: This field will be enabled once Auto Create Visit has been selected. Enter the number of days before an appointment the system will auto create a visit. If this field is left as zero, the visit will auto create as soon as the appointment has been scheduled.
- Remove Insurance Claim @ Cancel or No Show: Select this option to automatically remove insurance claims from patient accounts when the scheduled appointment is marked as Canceled or No Show. If not selected, insurance claims will remain on the patient account.

Below is an explanation of the options on the action bar:

• Messages: This option is used with the Patient Connect application.
<u>Messages</u>

The Messages option is where the messages for the Patient Connect application may be set for all places being scheduled.

NOTE: Access will need to be given to the Message Configuration Behavior Control to have access to this screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > General Control > Messages

-	TruBridge General Control	Table Maintenance 💉 General Control 🗴 🏫 🔍 💳 🕼 🎽 💷 🗸
P	🐢 📝 Edit - 🚳 Mass Change	
	Global Settings	
	Description	♦ Active ♦
	Affirmation	γ
	Reminder	Y
	Confirmation	Υ



To customize a message, select the message and then select Edit to display the Global Settings for the selected message will appear.

TruBridge Tables General Contro	ol	Table Maintenance	× General Control ×	俞 ৭ 🔳 🕼 🎽	' III 🌲 🏼 🕶 👻
🍞 🔶 📮 Save					
Appointment Messages					
Global Settings					
Message Type:	Reminder ~				
Inactive:					
Allow Voice Messages:					
Chat Widget ID:	3d3f814c983b4ed5871feeaf5583c2ac				
Message Subject:	Appointment Reminder				
Message content:	Hi @FNAME. This is a reminder that you have an appointment with @FAC on @DATETIME.				
Days Before Appointment:	1				
Message start time:	09:00				
Message end time:	18:00				
Minutes between run:	60				
Last updated by:	cpsi				
Last updated Date/Time:	2022-04-04 13:26:42				

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > General Control > Messages > Edit

General Control - Messages - Global Settings

Below is an explanation of each field.

- **Message Type:** Displays Confirmation, Reminder or Affirmation, depending on which message was selected.
- **Inactive:** Determines if the facility is sending the selected message. The default for this field will be unchecked.

- Allow Voice Messages: Select this option to enable voice messages and allow an auto call to be made to patients for appointment reminders if the patient has opted in for voice messages. This field will only display for Reminder messages.
- Chat Widget ID: For TruBridge use only.
- **Message Subject:** The subject to display in the email when it is sent to patients. There are mnemonics that may be used to automatically pull information in to the message:
 - **@FNAME:** This will pull the patient's name to the message.
 - **@FAC:** This will pull the name of the facility to the message.
 - **@MODAYR:** This will pull the US date format (Month, Day, Year) of the appointment to the message.
 - **@DAMOYR:** This will pull the international date format (Day, Month, Year) of the appointment to the message.
 - **@HHMM:** This will pull the time of the appointment to the message. The format will be HH:MM followed by AM or PM.
 - **@EVENTPHY:** This will pull the provider from the physician field on the Event screen of the appointment to the message.
- **Message Content:** The message the patient will get for the selected message.
- **Days Before Appointment:** The number of days before the appointment to send the message. This field will not display for Affirmation messages.
- Message Start Time: The time of day to begin sending the message.
- Message End Time: The time of day to stop sending the message.
- Minutes Between Run: The number of minutes between sending out messages.

NOTE: Appointment Reminder message will contain the text "<<No Reply>>" at the end to notify recipients that the mailbox messages are not monitored.

Select **Save** to save any changes made to the table.

Messages - Mass Changes

The Mass Change option allows facilities to set Affirmation, Reminder, and Confirmation messages to active or inactive by resource (i.e., by Location/Personnel).

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > General Control > Messages > Mass Change

-	TruBridge	Tables General Control			Table Maintenance	× General Control ×	🔒 ର୍ 🔳 🕼 🎽	₩ ♠	JP 👻
P		📕 Activate 📙 Inactivate							
	Resource Message Status All Resources Locations Personnel Message Type: Affirmation Resource Status: Both								
		Resource	\$	Resource Status	\$	Message Active			÷ *
		Cat Scan		Active		Active			
		DANIEL A MCCALISTER		Active		Active			
		DR BROOKE BISCHOFF		Active		Active			
		DR DAVID MITCHEM		Active		Active			

General Control - Messages - Mass Change

The list of the screen will display all Resources that have been set up in the Location and Personnel tables. The list may be delimited by Resource, Message Type and Resource Status (i.e., Active/Inactive).

Make sure to select the Message Type needing to be activated/inactivated from the drop-down and then select the Resources from the list.

Once all Resources has been selected, select Activate or Inactivate on the action bar.